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Name of the Bank: The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Multistate Scheduled Bank)
Cosmos Tower, Plot No.6, S.No. 132/B, ICS Colony, University Road, 

Ganeshkhind, Pune 411 007
Registration No & Date: Under the Co-operative Credit Societies Act, 1904. Reg. No. 20, Dated 18th January 1906

 MSCS/CR/72/97, dt. 28-11-1997
 ACD/MH/188 P, dt. 11-03-1980

UBD.BR.324/A-9-90/91,dt. 01-11-1990

(` in crores)
As on 

31.03.2014

(CRAR) 11.59%

Deposits

 Savings 1914.38

 Current 619.77

 Term 12199.07

Total 14733.22

 Advances

 Secured 10183.85

 Unsecured 111.43

Total 10295.28

Borrowings 368.00

Total Investments 4887.44

5.54%

84.31

0.29

Working Capital 16925.90

` in Crores
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20569.83
22098.38

2012-2013 2013-2014

25028.50

2014-2015

26994.84

Net Worth
(` in crores)

2013-14

Paid up Share Capital 313.92

Reserves and other Funds 1368.43

31.03.2014

134

Extension Counters — —

Members 79387

 Nominal Members   

 (Borrowers)
10201

A

Total Staff 2841
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Management Team
Mr. Vikrant Ponkshe Managing Director
Mr. Suhas Gokhale Jt. Managing Director, Credit Management
Mr. Ratnakar Nadkarni Chief General Manager
Ms. Nayan Lagad Chief General Manager
Mr. Avinash Rana Chief General Manager

Mr. Sharashchandra Suryavanshi
Mr. Vijay Vaidya
Ms. Sulekha Deuskar
Ms. Archana Jaywant Corporate Credit Cell (upto 30.04.2015)
Ms. Madhuri Marathe
Mr. Rajendra Pandit
Mr. Sunil Panse
Mr. Anil Barve
Ms Mukta Deshpande
Ms. Apekshita Thipsay Credit
Mr. Sanjay Puranik

(since 16.02.2015)
Mr. Manoj Shah
Ms. Akanksha Rane

M/s. Yardi Prabhu and Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai
M/s. P.G. Bhagwat, Chartered Accountants, Pune

 
Accountants, Pune
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NOTICE (FOR MEMBERS ONLY)

The 109th

be held on Saturday, 26th September 2015 at 9.00 am at Shivshankar Hall, S. No.698/1, Maharshinagar, 
Paigude Baug, Pune 411 037 for the transaction of the following business. Your presence therefore is 
highly solicited.

AGENDA

th Annual General Meeting held on 22nd June 2014 and  
Special General Meeting held on 28th December, 2014.

2. A) To consider and adopt

  i) Annual Report for the year 2014-2015.

st March 2015.

  iii) Balance Sheet of the year ended as on 31st March 2015.

 B) To review actual utilization of reserves and other funds during the year 2014-2015

the Board of Directors. (subject to approval of the Reserve Bank of India)

4. To consider the Report of Statutory Auditors and compliance thereof for the year 2014-2015.

5. To appoint Statutory Auditors for the year 2015-2016.

6.  To take note of the loans and advances outstanding from the Directors and their relatives during the 
year 2014-2015 (vide section 39(3) of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act 2002).

7.  To consider and adopt amendments proposed by the Hon. Board of Directors to the Bye-law 
Nos.4,6,6(a)(ii), 6(a)(vi), 6(b), 6(b)(ii),15(i), 16, 19, 24(i), 28, 31(iii), and 38. (Annexure enclosed).

8.   To sanction leave of absence to members who are not able to attend the 109th Annual General 
Meeting.

9. Any other matter, with the permission of the Chair.

Date :August 22, 2015
Pune

By order of the Board of Directors 
Vikrant Ponkshe 

Managing Director

Notes :
1.  The meeting shall commence at 9.00 am sharp. If the required quorum of members is not present at the 

commencement of the meeting, it shall be adjourned. The adjourned meeting will resume business on the 
same day, at the same place, at 9.30 am, irrespective of the quorum, in which, only the business mentioned 
in the Notice of the meeting shall be transacted.

2.  All documents and information relating to the business before this Annual General Meeting to be held on  
26th rd September, 2015, on working days, 
between 11.00 am and 4.00 pm.

3.  Members are requested to submit their queries, if any, regarding the subject to be considered at this Annual 
rd September,2015 on working days, between 

11.00 am and 4.00 pm.
4. Members are requested to kindly bring along a copy of this report at the meeting.
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During the last year, India got a stable and strong 

Government under the leadership of our Prime Minister,  

Hon’ble Shri Narendra Modi, creating an environment and 

a general feeling that the Indian economy will now progress 

on the path of growth and development. While this was our 

national scenario, in recent past there have been sudden 

instances on the international economic front which have 

caused concern all over the world. These sudden instances 

have had their impact on the Indian Economy.

Today Greece is almost on the verge of bankruptcy. The Greek 

crisis is seen as the archetypical of European countries. 

recent past due to the same and it is anticipated that in the 

near future the same trend will continue in the share market.

The war of currencies in the international market and the fear 

of great depression will have some repercussions on the 

Indian Economy; at the same time the measures such has 

prices will help in the Indian Economy successfully coming 

out as the winner as predicted by experts.

Due to considerable decrease in the rates of crude oil in 

the world market, Indian Economy has received the much 

are coming down which is increasing the purchasing power 

of customers, which in turn will give lift to manufacturing 

of goods in the country. Due to this scenario it seems that 

economically weak countries are facing problems while 

developing nations like India have got an opportunity to steer 

its economy on the road of progress.

In the background of the International Economic Crisis, there 

is a silver lining of hope that International Monetary Fund 

(IMF) in its latest report has projected that the growth rate 

of Indian Economy for the year 2015-2016 will be 7.5% With 

reference to the statistics of last year, though the pace of 

development has slowed down, Governor of Reserve Bank 

of India Mr. Raghuram Rajan has expressed his faith that the 

Indian Economy is strong. During this time, Reserve Bank 

of India has been keeping a watchful eye on the economic 

Banking Industry which is considered as the back-bone of 

Indian Economy had to go through many highs and lows 

conducive to the Banking Sector. The loan disbursement by 

all banks in India was the lowest at 10.1%. While in comparison 

the Deposits did see some enhancement. All the banks were 

under the clutches of NPA. Public Sector banks had to bear 

the brunt of this more than other banks. Some private and 

co-operative banks too faced the problem of NPA. Banks 

tried the utmost to overcome this issue. Along with NPA, 

capital, depreciation of the rupee and natural calamities like 

drought and earthquakes gave a blow to the Economy. 

Reserve Bank of India [RBI] faced these challenging times 

creating a situation wherein it was possible to provide credit 

to general public at a lower rate of interest. In the half-yearly 

credit policy to be declared in the September 2015, there is 

pressure on RBI to reduce the repo rate. If this materializes, 

there could be an environment conducive to reduction in 

the rates of interest thus making credit to industries and 

consumers available at lower rates of interest which in turn 

will create a positive impact on banking sector.

The Indian Economy is moving from depression towards 

Government is announcing various schemes for investments. 

This is getting a positive response from industries in India 

and around the world. This has created optimistic situation 

for business and industries all over the country. This has 

created an encouraging environment that employment will 

be created giving further boost to Indian Economy.

NOVA as a project is the beginning of change from product 

based services to customer based services. Business 

growth, customer segmentation with the intention to provide 

processes, de-risking of operations are some of the intentions 

of this operating model. Project NOVA is operational since 
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focusing on retail business, 5 Hubs were established in the 

[Gujarat]. 

To provide our services to all sections of people, new 

products and schemes were designed. 

For effective marketing of the Bank’s products and services to 

the cross section of society covering individuals, institutions, 

entrepreneurs, SMEs, corporates etc., the concept of 

BIZCON [Business Consultant] was introduced wherein 

certain select existing staff members were extensively 

trained for marketing and sales and also on product 

knowledge with a view to reaching out to small businessmen 

and entrepreneurs, proprietorship concerns, SMEs. An 

extension of this segmentation is contemplated to separately 

and independently cater to individuals, institutions and 

corporates. 

COSMOS e

subsidiary company operational since 2007. On the request 

of the Bank, Senior Scientist, creator of Param Computer  the 

 

and Founder of renowned IT Company, Persistent,   

Mr. Ashutosh Joshi accepted the Directorship of this 

company. Under the guidance of these expert Directors, 

various software solutions related to the Bank are developed, 

supported and maintained. This subsidiary also offers 

services of software development and support to other 

collaboration of IT Shastra, has developed and brought into 

 

headed the Board of Directors as the Chairman and  

The tenure of the Board of Directors for the years 2010 to 

2015 ended in the month of December 2014. For supervising 

the election to the Board of Directors for the years 2015-2020, 

Societies, Maharashtra State was appointed as Returning 

Delhi. As per the Bank’s bye-laws, the election has to be 

conducted in the General Meeting of the members, hence 

all the members on December 28th 2014 and started the 

Election process. Election was simultaneously conducted 

across 7 states through 71 polling centres.

The result of this election was declared by the Returning 

Board are as follows:-

1. Dr. Mukund Laxman Abhyankar

2. Mr. Madhukar Waman Atre

3. Dr. Smita Vilas Jog

4. Mr. Milind Anant ale

ishorilal Goyal

6. Mr. Govind Raghunath shirsagar

7. Adv. Jayant Balkrishna Shaligram

8. Mr. Prakash Madhusudan Joshirao

9. CA Sunil Arvind Sabnis

10. Mr. Rajeev Balwant Sabade

11. Adv. Pralhad Bhimrao okare

12. Adv. Shripad Dattatray Panchpor

13. Mr. Jitendra Bhimshi Shah

After declaration of results, the meeting of board of directors 

was conducted on January 4th 2015 which was presided over 

post of Chairman and Vice-Chairman was conducted in this 

Goyal and Mr. Madhukar Atre 

were elected as Chairman and Vice-Chairman respectively. 

In this meeting Mr. Umesh Datar was deputed as staff 

representative.
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(` in crs.)

Share Capital 313.92

Reserves 1368.43

Owned Funds 1682.35

Net NPA 3.81%

A) Interest Received 1557.82

B) Other Income 187.26

C) Other Credits 91.83

Total Expenditure

A) Interest Paid 1195.05

B) Establishment Expenditure 108.74

C) Other Expenditure 135.01

D) Provisions 333.81

Reversal of excess Investment Fluctuation Reserve 20.01 —

`57,64,26,301.59 (in words Rupees Fifty seven crore sixty four lac 

as well as last year’s balance carried forward, in the following manner, subject to the approval of the Reserve Bank of India.

`  57,64,26,301.59

`  3,98,25,737.03

Appropriation (proposed) ` 61,62,52,038.62

1. Reserve Fund (25%) ` 14,41,06,580.00

2. Education Fund (1%) ` 57,64,270.00

3. Reserve for unforeseen losses (10%) ` 5,76,42,640.00

4. Dividend (12%) (Subject to Reserve Bank of India’s Approval) ` 37,36,89,644.00

5. Investment Fluctuation Reserve `  —

` 58,12,03,133.99

` 3,50,48,904.63

`57,64,26,301.59 in the year under review.)
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The year witnessed a reduction of ̀ 1.49 crore in 
the share capital of the Bank, which decreased 
from `313.92 crore to `312.43 crore. As per 

the RBI norms, a minimum CRAR ratio of 9% is mandatory 
for co-operative Banks. We wish to inform you that as on 31st 
March 2015, the CRAR of your Bank is at a satisfactory level 
of 11.25%

Central Registrar of Co-op Credit Societies, New Delhi and 
Reserve Bank of India has given permission to your Bank to 
accept Long Term Deposits up to `197 crore. Thus your Bank 
has started this scheme from 5th May 2015. The tenure for 
deposit under this scheme is 66 months. The rate of interest 
on this scheme for all depositors is 10%. This scheme has 
received good response from the customers and up till  
22 August 2015, Bank has collected Long Term Deposit of 
`147 crore under this scheme.

To keep the CRAR ratio well above the ratio prescribed by the 
Reserve Bank of India, it is the aspiration of Board of Directors 
to distribute the Perpetual Non-cumulative Preference Shares 
and so the necessary changes in the Bye Laws are proposed 
and the concerned Bye Law has been included in this year’s 
Amendments to the Bye Laws.

General Meeting, it will be submitted to the Hon’ble Central 
Registrar and Reserve Bank of India for further permission. On 
receiving the permission, the Bank will open the option to its 
share-holders and customers to invest whole-heartedly in the 
Perpetual Non-cumulative Preference Shares.

The set-up of our Bank has increased from ̀ 25,028 crore as on 
31st March 2014 to `26,992 as on 31st March 2015. Thus the 
increase in the total set-up is `1,964 crore. Bank’s own funds 
have increased from `1,682 crore as on 31st March 2014 to 
`1,853 crore as on 31st March 2015. This increase is 10.12%.

In the year 2014-15, there was increase of 
`1,101.86 crore in the deposits and at the end 
of March 2015, the deposits of the Bank stood 

at `15,835 crore. This is an increase of 7.48% in the deposits. 

CASA deposits increased by `137 crore from `2,534.15 crore 
as on March 31, 2014 to `2,671.01 crore this year. The CASA 
deposits are 16.87% of the total deposits. During the year 
under review to increase deposits, initiatives like ‘Product of 
the Month’, CASA drive were undertaken.

On the occasion of 109th anniversary of the Bank, ‘Cosmo 
Dhanvruddhi’ scheme was launched. This scheme got a very 
good response from the customers and deposits of ̀ 971 crore 
were mobilized by the Bank.

and advances of your Bank increased from 
`10,295 crore to `11,159 crore. In comparison 
to last year, wherein the rise in advances was 

`1,055 crore, the rise in the year under review was `862 crore. 
The percentage of increase in advances in the year under 
review was 8.40%. Taking into consideration the notional 
writeoff of `173 crore of outstanding loans, the percentage 
of credit growth is 10.05%. The Credit Deposit Ratio as on  
31st March 2015 stood at 70.46%. Based on the RBI guidelines 
on the Prudential norms on Single and group party exposures, 
your Bank could take a maximum single party exposure of 
`187 crore and a maximum group exposure of `498 crore 

will enable your Bank to provide loans to various reputed 
companies and corporate customers henceforth.

In the year under review, the advances in priority sector stood 
at `4015.60 crore, which is 35.99% of the total advances. 
The advances to weaker sections make up 7.16% of the 
total portfolio. Currently, the Bank offers wide range of loan 
schemes like Home Loans, SME Loans, Mortgage Loans, Car 
Loans, Gold Loans, Education Loans, Cosmo Credit Loans 
etc., at interest rates and terms that are very competitive and 
reasonable.

ELECTRONIC LETTER OF CREDIT

services through Structured Financial Messages System with 
a view to providing additional security while processing Letter 
of Credit and to complete the said process in minimum time.

To increase the quantum of small and medium ticket loans a 
dedicated Retail Credit Department was established. The Retail 
Credit Department is operational, under a General Manager. 
This department has been assigned the responsibility of 
increasing the quantum of retail loans across the Bank. 
Cosmo-credit loan facility of `5 lac was started for customers 
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working in Private Limited and Public Limited Companies. 
Under this scheme, the said companies will have to open the 
salary accounts of their employees in your Bank and submit 
an undertaking about repayment of loan installments through 
these salary accounts.

Your Bank has started tie-ups with renowned builders to 
increase the home loans. This enables the members to buy 
homes in authorized housing projects by giving minimum 
required documents.

Under the home loan scheme, your Bank is offering the facility 
of paying 10% amount of the margin money at the time of 
taking possession of the home. In the cases where the housing 
projects are under construction, Bank has provided the option 
of paying the money in 10-80-10 format (10% of margin money 
at the time of booking and 10% of the margin money at the 
time of possession of the house).

any delay in completion of the scheme, the Bank has given 
option to the builders to pay some portion of the interest of the 
housing instalment of the particular housing loan.

functioning since 2011 with the main task of 
post-disbursement monitoring of large size 

borrowers. It is currently headed by Chief General Manager 
under the active control and guidance of Joint Managing 
Director – Credit Management.

Periodic evaluation of all such large loan assets and monitoring 
of restructured accounts is being done regularly by this Cell 

statements, review position of Cash Credit accounts, timely 

Regional Heads for corrective action to remove/improve upon 

their problems. With rigorous follow-up, persuasion, recovery 
measures etc., this Cell tries to arrest slippages into NPA of 
any of these loan assets and ensures that these accounts 
remain operative and standard. This Cell also monitors and 
controls the restructured accounts.

Industry wise review of borrower accounts is taken by this cell 
in case of any adverse market situations. Also, information 
of borrowers coming under Consortium/Multiple banking 
is exchanged by this Cell on quarterly basis with all the 
concerned banks.

Annual Stock Audit exercise is also done by this Cell. The 
exercise of stock audit was initiated by the Bank to verify the 
security offered to the Bank against the various facilities and 
its adequacy to cover the limits on particular date. Stock audit 
on yearly basis is made applicable for the borrowers having 
working capital limits of `5 crores and above. Stock Audit 
enables the Bank to check and verify that the advances are 

repaying capacity.

s

The phenomenon of Non-Performing Assets [NPAs] has been 
posing a serious challenge to the banking sector to such an 
extent that the entire banking system in the country has been 
feeling the heat of the increasing trend in the Gross NPAs. 
Various critical developments on the national and the global 
economic front have cast their impact on the conduct and 
quality of various loan assets across the banking system, thus 
culminating into an increase in the gross NPA levels. Indeed, 
in a few cases, the intentions and the tendency of a few 
borrowers to default also is one of the reasons contributing to 
increased level of NPAs. Banks across all the sectors-private, 
public and co-operative alike, have been adversely affected by 
these factors in the year under review and have thus registered 
increase in their gross NPA levels.

As of 31st March 2014, the percentage of overdue is 6.80%. 
While the Gross NPA is at 9.23%, the net NPA is at 6.59%. In 

`65.36 
crore from NPAs and of `12.97 crore from Notional Write-off 
Accounts thus aggregating to a total recovery of `78.33 crore.

Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act 
[SARFAESI Act], Hon’ble Supreme Court had vacated the 
stay earlier granted on technical grounds against the recovery 
action initiated by co-operative banks under this Act, on 
18.02.2015. Thus, the notices to the defaulters for payment of 
defaulted amount have been sent and considerable recovery 
in the said defaulted accounts is expected in the year 2015-16.

for effective recovery in the NPA accounts. Recovery efforts 
such as timely actions under the SARFAESI Act as well 

 
Multistate Co-operative Societies Act and approval for One 
Time Settlement (OTS) proposals as per the current position 
of the borrower etc. were taken. Your Bank will make optimum 
use of the rights received from the Government of Maharashtra 
under section 156 of Maharashtra State Co-operative Societies 
Act, 1960 for recovery in the claims received under section 
101 of the said Act.
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regions have been arranged to get overdue loan accounts 
closed by way of OTS. Response received for recovery from 
defaulters is satisfactory. Bank was able to close many NPAs. 

for the recovery out of the NPAs in the Mumbai and Gujarat 
regions as well in the current year.

Risk Management is a key factor in ensuring 

the stability and development of business of 

any bank considering the economic conditions 

from time to time, contagion impact of various global events 

a regulatory compliance requirement from Reserve Bank 

which aims to make the banking sector more robust and self-

evolving. Hence your Bank has developed a roadmap for 

implementing effective risk management policies across the 

organisation and working towards building a ‘risk awareness’ 

culture in all its day-to-day activities. The risk management 

An approved Risk Management Policy and Framework guides 

all the risk management initiatives undertaken by the Bank. 

Risk Policy, Liquidity Policy, ALM Policy, etc. which are 

currently being developed and implemented across your 

Bank. The monitoring and reporting of the risk management 

Operations, Technology and Risk (OTR) committee, ALCO, 

Loan committee etc.

Apart from these risk management initiatives, the department 
also oversees Information Security. Further it also facilitates 
strategic analysis and management reporting of any risk and 
governance issues.

Bank’s Funds and Investment management 
is looked after at Integrated Treasury 

Department at Mumbai and at Pune. Apart from managing 
statutory requirements of CRR and SLR on daily basis, the 

ensure optimum utilization of funds and also helped to release 

where the demand for loan slackened and the quality of loans 
was under pressure. It also helps to maximize returns by 
having hawk eye on the ever changing market conditions.

This department handles both the businesses viz. Money 

various investment options available in the market. This 
includes Government Securities, Treasury Bills, Non-SLR 

Deposit, Commercial Papers etc. The investments made in 
these various options enables to divide the risk involved, and 
reduce the possible risks in the investments.

The Treasury Department took full advantage of the initiatives 

of `112.33 crore through effective trading of our Government 
Securities portfolio.

The Treasury Department while managing the investments, 

factors viz. the risks involved, available funds for investment, 

rates.

resulted into lowering the interest rates.

The record performance was a result of FOCUSSED efforts 
of COSMOS TREASURY TEAM in forecasting of markets, 
continuous analysis of volatile Global and Indian market 
conditions and acting at proper time with disciplined 
investment approach. This has resulted into increase in yield 
on total investment portfolio of `4855.13 crore (excluding 
investments in security receipts) from 8.87% for the year  
2013-14 to 9.18% for the year 2014-15.

Your Bank is providing all types of Foreign Exchange Services 

since Sept. 2007. In the last 7 years, your Bank has complied 

business. Your Bank has received a permanent license for 

Authorized Dealership CAT – 1 for providing Foreign Exchange 

Services, from the Reserve Bank of India on 31st July 2014.

Forex Centers are operational at Dadar, Vile Parle, Ahmedabad, 

Deccan Gymkhana, Hyderabad and Aurangabad Branches. 

During the year under report, to provide the Foreign Exchange 

services, Bank has started its 7th B Cat Forex Center at Surat.

Your Bank is providing all Foreign Exchange Services to its 

clients swiftly which are at par with the other big banks. During 
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the Bank has shown an increase of 18% whereas inter-bank 

Foreign Exchange business reached at `13,338.99 crore.

Bank’s International transactions are done with the help of 
international banks viz. Wells Fargo Bank, Commerz Bank, 

of various Indian banks viz. Axis Bank, Bank of India, Indian 
Overseas Bank. The enduring relationship of the Bank with 
more than 100 Banks worldwide has stimulated the increase 
in Foreign Exchange business of the Bank.

Straight Through Processing (STP) mechanism enabling 
instant transfer of funds to any Bank. Considering the 

by the customers is constantly increasing. This is very much 
evident from the following chart:

Interbank Transactions (Nos.) 6,965
Customer Transactions (Nos.) 2,64,390
Total Transactions (Nos.) 2,71,355
Total Amount (` in crore) 48,402.38
Particulars

Total Transactions (Nos.) 9,58,243
Total Amount (` in crore) `7,175.45 `

This facility is available in all the branches of the Bank. The customers can now use NEFT facility through Internet Banking also.

RBI has introduced Cheque Truncation System. To align with 
the RBI’s strategy and mission to introduce safe, secure, sound 

gateway called the Clearing House Interface (CHI) that enables 
us to connect and transmit data and images in a secure and 

who has CHI interface in Pune; we have also made this facility 
available to our sub members as well as other banks.

With this facility being offered to our customers, your Bank 
is able to provide better customer service with reduced 
operational risk in banking operations like clearing.

In addition to the NEFT and RTGS, your Bank has introduced 
the new payment mode using NPCI through Bank channel. 
This payment service offered by your Bank using the Aadhaar 

transfers i.e. credit transactions for Government / Government 
agencies including social security pension, LPG subsidy, 
payment under the employment guarantee scheme, public 
distribution system and stipend to children returned to school, 
and scholarships will be covered under the Äadhaar Payment 
Bridge System.

NACH is available to the customers for making bulk 

transactions towards distribution of subsidies, dividends, 

interest, salary, pension, etc. and also for bulk transactions 

towards the collection of payments pertaining to telephone, 

electricity, water, loans, investments in mutual funds, insurance 

premium etc. The services such as Local ECS, RECS, NECS 

are available successfully operational on NACH system.

During the year 2014-15, more than 47,000 customers have 

The Bank has made available its services through Tab Banking 

with a view to extending the scope and reach of various banking 

products and services cover the hither to unbanked areas 

communities within the fold of banking. The Tab Banking 

service will enable the customers to deposit amount in an 

account, open recurring and term deposit accounts etc. The 

said system is linked with the Document Management System 

the documents submitted by the customers and also to keep 

a permanent record of the same. Business Correspondents 

are providing the Banking services under Financial Inclusion 

to the customers through Tab Banking.
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Your Bank has launched Internet Banking 

Service - Cosmo Net on the occasion of 

Bank’s 107th annual day on 18th January 2013. 

This service facilitates customers to enjoy banking services 

viz. Funds Transfer, opening term deposit account, placing a 

request for Pay-Slip, Demand Draft, Cheque Book and Bank 

Statements, view account details, send a request for stop 

payment from their place of residence or place of work. In 

the last year more than 35000 customers registered for this 

service. We are receiving a good response to the said services 

and more than 51000 customers are availing Internet Banking 

service. We offer secured Internet Banking facility through 

OTP as well as alerts for various activities on customer’s 

registered mobile and e-mail. Now NEFT transactions done 

through Internet Banking to other Bank’s account are free. 

Bill payment facility is also available through internet banking 

service. E-Tax as well as Universal Bill Pay Service will also be 

available shortly through Internet Banking Service.

Tally accounting software has been integrated and is now 

part of Internet Banking Service provided by the Bank. The 

said software is used in the Corporate World for payment to 

its various vendors and suppliers, to maintain all accounting 

details and calculations of the amount received by the 

company. To serve the needs of the corporate customers, said 

service has been made available with the support of Tally ERP 

through the Internet Banking of the Bank which will enable 

the customers to make payment to its vendors and suppliers 

by using Tally ERP Software through Internet Banking. In this 

service, two options are available to the customer viz. Single 

Transaction and Bulk Transaction.

This service facilitates customers to undertake 
funds transfer within or outside the Bank, 
recharging of the mobiles, payment of 

Bills, view account balance or account statements, request 
for a cheque book / stop payment etc. and that too in a 
secured manner through mobile. Last year approximately 
6000 customers registered for this service and as on  
31st March,2015 approximately more than 11000 customers 
are availing mobile banking facility. This service is available for 
all customers on all types of mobile phones.

Considering the constantly increasing trend in the market to 
perform the e-Commerce transactions, the said function will 
also be available shortly through Mobile Banking Service.

In response to the green IT initiative, Bank has initiated a 
process for consolidation of servers. Under this process 
number of servers will be reduced and they will be 
consolidated in a single hardware. This will facilitate to resolve 
any issue immediately which is faced due to hardware and 
to keep the said system up and running consistently. This 
will further facilitate the Bank to use the present servers after 
minor changes for any advanced Computer systems required 
in future and thus purchasing requirement of any additional 
servers could be reduced.

Your Bank has started E Locker service for its customers. 

Under this online document storage service, customers 

can store and easily retrieve their important documents viz. 

as per requirement. Considering the security features, easy 

retrieval of the stored documents at any future date, members 

are requested to take maximum advantage of the said service.

various updated information of the Customers viz. Address, 

to time. It is imperative to maintain the secrecy of these basic 

details of the customers. It is not convenient to take the hard 

and are stored in soft copies. Hence, these documents are 

available online and immediate.

use of the computerized systems, there is a continuous 

increase in fraud incidents. Communication portal has been 

operationalized by the Bank for its customers to communicate 

secure manner to the Bank. Through this Communication 

portal, the customers can communicate via web portal with 

the Bank, download various documents, place any banking 

transaction related request, store the important documents 

through e-locker facility.

Considering regular demand of the customers and considering 

the services made available by various banks in the market, 

your Bank has launched POS (Point of Sale) facility for the 
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customers from October 2014. Under this service, customers 

are not required to use currency notes and by swiping their 

Debit Card on POS machine they can do the shopping / 

purchasing. Accordingly, POS machines are installed at some 

hotels, petrol pumps, various malls and shops.

These POS machines have been installed at 44 points. As on 
31st March, 2015, 1104 transactions of `39 lac approximately 
have been done through these machines.

with the help of this machine could themselves make banking 

request for a printed account statement.

The Government of Maharashtra has introduced a new 
scheme wherein LPG Subsidy given by the Government can 
be directly credited in the customer’s account though they 
have not mentioned their Aadhaar Number. For offering the 
said scheme to our Savings Bank Account holders we have 
made required transformation in our computer system and 
we have introduced this scheme to Bank’s customers. This 
transformed computer system have various convenient 

for immediate update of related site, crediting the subsidy 
amount in the Bank Accounts of LPG customers and also 
to send a SMS on the mobile phones of the customers 
accordingly.

As on 31st March, 2015 through this scheme `11.71 crore 
through 2,38,388 transactions have been credited to Savings 
Accounts in your Bank.

Considering the security of the debit card 
your Bank has introduced Cosmos Bank Chip 
Debit Card for its customers. This will enable 

to perform secured transactions and will also secure against 
any fraudulent incidents done through Debit Card. The system 
used in the said Chip card almost prohibits cloning of the card.

Bank in Maharashtra to get the Reserve Bank’s 
approval for starting the Currency Chest. 
Accordingly, your Bank has established a 

as per Reserve Bank’s criteria and is operational w.e.f.  

6th January, 2014.

Main functions of the Currency Chest are to provide fresh / 

sorted cash and coins to all branches of the Bank, remove 

soiled notes from circulation and remit the same to RBI, 

detection and impounding of forged notes etc.

As on 31st March 2015, the total cash turnover handled by the 

Currency Chest is `2817.87 crore.

During the year 2014-15 our Currency Chest sent back 

soiled currency notes worth `149.14 crore to the Reserve 

Bank of India. During the year under report, Reserve Bank 

has rendered `16.20 crore worth fresh currency notes to the 

Currency Chest.

The cash balance available at the Currency Chest is reckoned 

for maintenance of the Cash Reserve Ratio [CRR] of your 

Bank due to which your Bank is saved of the necessity of 

maintaining separate cash with the regulator to honour its CRR 

obligations. The Currency Chest is thus notionally contributing 

to the income of your Bank.

During the year under report, special soiled currency notes 

exchange drives were organized by the Currency Chest for the 

customers at selected branches in Pune viz. University Road, 

Laxmi Road, Viman nagar, Sinhagad Road, Gandhibhavan, 

Deccan Gymkhana, Baner Road. During the said melas, 

soiled currency notes worth `1.77 crore were exchanged by 

the customers for fresh currency notes.

Your Bank is a depository participant of 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) 
and Central Depository Services (India) 

Limited (CDSL) for last many years. In addition to the Bank’s 

to 98 centres are offering depository services to the clients.

facility policyholders can store their all insurance policies 
under e-Insurance Account in dematerialized / electronic 

Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority’s (IRDA) 
approval for starting this facility. This facility is made available 
to more than 700 account holders.

During the year under report, 2,920 DEMAT account were 
opened.

From this business your Bank has generated business of 
`1.24 crore.
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Your Bank has been offering Mutual Fund 
service alongwith demat service to its 
customers. Your Bank has tied-up with 
14 renowned mutual fund houses namely 

Birla Sunlife Asset Management Company, Tata Asset 

Principal PNB Asset Management Company, Reliance Asset 
Management Company, HDFC Asset Management Company, 
ICICI Prudential Asset Management Company, UTI Asset 
Management Company, ING Asset Management Company, 
DSP Blackrock Asset Management Company, Sundaram BNP 
Paribas Asset Management Company, SBI Asset Management 
Company, IDFC Asset Management Company and LIC 
Nomura Mutual Fund Asset Management Company. Mutual 
fund services are provided through 46 branches including 

risk- free income of `21.93 lakhs as compared to 18.70 lakhs 
of the previous year, thus registering rise of 17%.

Your Bank is a Corporate Agent of  
M/s Bajaj Allianz Insurance Co. Ltd. for General 

services and policies are made available to the Customers. 
This income generated through this business has been added 
in the other income of the Bank.

As on 31st March, 2015, your Bank has gained business of 
`52.41 through this service.

Annual Audit of this business was conducted in accordance 

satisfactory.

Your Bank has made available “Pradhan Mantri Suraksha Bima 

all its branches. For providing these service your Bank has 
signed an agreement with New India Assurance Co. Ltd. and 
LIC of India respectively.

We hold a license from the Maharashtra and 
Gujarat Governments for the sale of stamps. 
Bank members, account holders, citizens and 

other organizations as well as Banks have been able to avail 
this facility from 21 of our branches. In the year under report, 
your Bank has sold stamps amounting to `24.12 crore and 
has received commission of `29.14 lacs.

From December 2013, the Government has put an amount 
restriction of `5,000/- on sale of stamp through franking 

facility. Hence, e-franking service has been started for the 
customers through 6 branches of the Bank and this service 
will be available through all branches in Maharashtra State 
shortly.

Your Bank is a PAN Card Business Partner 
of UTI Technology Services Ltd. The PAN 
services are provided across all the branches. 

After compliance of all the documents required for PAN Card, 
the customers receive a PAN Card within 8-10 working days. 
During the period under report, more than 10,000 customers 
have used the PAN Card services. Your Bank earned a fee 
based income of `1.35 lacs through this initiative.

Your Bank provides E tax payment facility to the 

customers since 2008. The Bank has signed a 

contract with IDBI Bank for this purpose. This 

facility enables our customers to pay TDS, Income Tax, Sales 

Tax, VAT, Service Tax, Excise Duty, Custom Fees, Professional 

Tax, and Wealth Tax through the Bank. During FY 2014-15, your 

Bank has executed 50,388 e-tax transactions and deposited 

tax payments of our customers amounting to `610.18 crore to 

the Government.

Standards Board of India (BCSBI). Your Bank 

is committed to follow the prescribed standards of banking 

practice in dealing with customers.

These Codes set the benchmark of services with regard to 

time, quality, standardized forms etc. Adherence to these 

Codes automatically enables the Bank to offer a higher level 

of services to its Customers. The Codes are displayed on the 

website of the Bank for the information of customers. The 

improvement in customer service.

The Annual Compliance Statement is submitted to BCSBI 
every year as per requirement.

Accountants, Mumbai and M/s. P. G. Bhagwat, 
Chartered Accountants Pune were appointed 

as the joint statutory auditors for the Financial Year 2014-15, in 
the Annual General Meeting dated 22nd June 2014. They have 
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carried out the complete audit of all the branches and head 

in this report.

The entire working of the Bank is fully computerized.  
M/s. Oxygen Consultancy Services is appointed for system 
audit of the Bank for 2014-15. They have completed system 
audit of the Bank. Audit of IT Infrastructure at branches this 
year is done by trained internal staff.

Separate regional audit departments are 

vigilance on the day to day banking operations 
in the branches of each region.

In accordance with RBI guidelines for providing 
Banking services to economically weaker 
section of the population, your Bank is working 

started in association with Unique Education Foundation. The 
number of Group members linked to your Bank has reached 
7650. Nearly, 765 Self Help Groups have opened their saving 
accounts in your Bank. The Bank is providing facilities like 

to these Groups.

As a part of Financial Inclusion, your Bank has appointed 
Business Correspondents for providing Banking services 
to people, who are willing to avail such services but are not 
able to visit branches due to their occupation or distance 
from the branch. These Business Correspondents will be 
functioning in the areas allotted to them in relation to a Base 
branch. The support of technology is provided to the Business 

next Financial Year. Under this project, customers can open 
new account, deposit or withdraw money from the account 
without visiting the bank.

This Department performs an important 
function of recruiting candidates who 

knowledge of banking sector in the bank as 
per the requirement. This department also works for creating 

conducive environment for boosting the morale of the Bank 
employees by conducting various types of training programs 

members.

Fast track Promotion Policy is being implemented by your 

System has been implemented for evaluation of performance 
of staff. This department looks after the recruitment, retirement 

branches. Capable staff members are promoted to the higher 
positions in accordance with the internal promotion policy. In 
the year 2014-15 total 175 employees have been promoted.

Your Bank is proud to have total staff strength of 2955 

on March 31, 2015.

There have been cordial relations between the Bank 

To achieve the pre-set goals, for updating the employees with 

services; training is considered to be the best medium. With 

skills, all type of trainings are imparted centrally through 

trainings. Efforts are taken for improving the skills of the 

ultimately make the bank excel in all the avenues.

127 training programs covering 3410 employees were 
conducted in-house, covering a wide range of topics to 
enhance the skill and capability of the staff. In addition to 
this, 142 employees were deputed to 44 training programs 
conducted by organizations like College of Agricultural 
Banking, Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India, 
National Federation of Urban Co-op. Banks and Credit 
Societies (NAFCUB), IDRBT etc.

To keep the morale of the employees high and to ensure 
proper succession planning, due promotions are given on a 
regular basis.

developed by your Bank for self-study and increase of skill. 
Various online examinations have been conducted through 
this system. This system can be accessed by staffs from their 
own computers.
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  On the occasion of International Women’s Day, on  
8th March, 2015 a get-together of the ladies staff of the 
Bank was arranged at Cosmos Tower. Pune. In this 
programme Dr. Shirish Patwardhan and Medha Gokhale 
gave guidance to the present ladies staff. Various 
competitions for women staff were arranged during this 
function. On the occasion of International Women’s Day, 
the staff of The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd, collected 
various items of stationery of daily use and had given it 

part of their Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

   The Bank’s Cricket Team participated in 2 cricket 

Bank has won 2 matches.

Date
26th September, 2014 Borivali ( East), Mumbai
30th September, 2014 Coimbatore, Tamilnadu
7th November, 2014 Andheri (West), Mumbai
18th January, 2015 Hosur, Tamilnadu
18th January, 2015 Anna Nagar, Chennai
18th January, 2015 Madipakkam, Chennai

Date

2nd May, 2014 Some Departments of Dadar Branch 

16th June, 2014 Dashmesh Nagar, Aurangabad

21st August, 2014 Pune Ambegoan (Bk.)

7th October, 2014

1.  23rd September 2014 – New Branch at Borivali (East), 
Mumbai was inaugurated at the hands of Bank’s Chairman 

2.  17th March 2015 - Andheri (West) Branch, Mumbai 
was inaugurated at the hands of famous Actor  
Shri. Ajinkya Dev.

3.  2nd May 2015 – Madipakkam, Chennai Branch was 
inaugurated at the hands of Shri. Anand Patil (IAS) 
Director – Dept. of Financial Services, Ministry of Finance, 
Govt. of India

4.   2nd May 2015 – Anna Nagar, Chennai Branch was 
inaugurated at the hands of Shri. M. N. Manjunath (IPS), 
IG North Zone Tamilnadu.

COSMOS TOWER

University Road was completed during the year under review. 
This iconic building was aptly named as Cosmos Tower. 

Cosmos Tower in the month of October.

Before the shifting, on the morning of 29th September ‘Vastu 
Pooja’ was conducted at Cosmos Tower. In the special 
programme on the same day in the evening renowned 

unveiled your Bank’s new logo.

Special visitors’ days were arranged on September 30th, 

of various institutes, etc. During these 3 days, almost 10000 
visitors visited Cosmos Tower and expressed their satisfaction 

The expenditure on this building at the end of 31st March, 2015 
was `117 crore.

November 25th, 2014 at the hands of Hon’ble Devendra Fadnavis, 
Chief Minister, Maharashtra. A special programme was 
arranged on this occasion at the Polytechnic College Sports 
Ground situated on the University Road. Present on this 

Social Welfare, Member of Parliament - Hon’ble Anil Shirole, 

of Pune, Hon’ble Dattatray Dhankawde along with MLA’s, 

the Bank.

Following the inauguration, many dignitaries like Ex-President 
of India, Shrimati Pratibha Patil, Senior Scientist and Director 

of Reserve Bank of India, Mr. S. S. Mundra etc., visited Cosmos 

its 109th anniversary on 18th January 2015 at Cosmos Tower. 
Our members, account holders and well-wishers were present 

at the new premises of the Bank.
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On the occasion of the 109th anniversary of your Bank 
celebrated on 18th January 2015, various schemes for 
customers have been announced including Cosmo Dhan 
Vruddhi Special Deposit Scheme, Agreement with FINO for 
Financial inclusion, announcement of opening new branches 
in Tamilnadu.

From this Financial Year your Bank has decided to celebrate 
branch anniversaries through various social and cultural 
initiatives to reach as many customers as possible.

1.  On 27th August 2014 Bank has organized a 
 

Shri. Chandrshekar Tilak, Vice President of NSDL. In this 
session Shri. Tilak explained various provisions in the 
Union Budget and also answered the various queries 
raised by the audience.

2.  On 6th March 2015 Bank has organized a programme on 
Central Budget 2015-16 in collaboration with Garware 
College of Commerce, Pune. In this programme, 
the lecture was given by Shri. Chandrashekar Tilak,  
Vice President of NSDL.

was done on 21st

the Bank at the auspicious hands of renowned Cricketer  
Mr. Ajinkya Rahane. At that time famous sports 

 
New India Assurance Co. were also present.

4.  On the occasion of 7th anniversary of Satara Branch, 
renowned economist and CDSL’s investor’s education 
department’s chief Shri Chandrashekhar Thakur has 

the said lecture he guided on various topics viz. Demat, 
IPO, Book Building, Pay In Pay Out, T+2, On line Trading, 
Mutual Fund, Rajiv Gandhi Equity Savings Scheme, Stock 
Exchange Methodology, Choosing a perfect Broker and 
security coverage available to the investors.

branches regarding Net Banking and Digital Citizen. 
The said workshop is available free of cost to the Bank’s 
customers and under this, trainings on various topics will 
be given viz. Introduction to Online Account, Operations of 
Banking transaction, Online Bill Payment, Fund Transfer, 
Shopping etc. which can be done by the customer in the 
comfort at their home.

1.  Your Bank has received a permanent AD-Cat I license for 
foreign exchange services from Reserve Bank of India.

Urban Co-op. Banks Federation Ltd. Your Bank has 
been selected amongst all other Co-op. Banks from 
Maharashtra State for this award.

3.  For International Correspondent relationships, Commerz 
Bank AG Frankfurt, Germany has bestowed an award 
upon your Bank for the year 2014. Commerz Bank is 
the leading German Bank. While conferring this award 
on your Bank, they have appreciated and noted your 

professionalism in your Bank’s operations.

with ISO 9001:2008 for Quality Management System by 
BSI which is world renowned Co. of Britain. The said 

5.  Your Bank has received “The NSDL Star Performer Award 

Senior Director Shri. Rajesh Joshi of NSDL.

6.  Your Bank has received a permanent license from SEBI to 
work as a Depository Participant for NSDL and CDSL.

(IRDA) has granted permission to provide charges free 
service for maintaining Life Insurance Policies issued by 

its Customers.

by the Rotary Foundation of Rotary International at the 
hands of Shri. P T Prabhakar, Director- Rotary International 
2013-15 at Rotarian Dr. Deepak Shikarpur – District 
Governor Rotary International 2013-14 was present on 
this occasion.

has been felicitated with a district level “Adarsha Vyapari 

Uttamchand in the memory of Baba Pokarna by The 
Poona Merchants Chamber.
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has been elected as a Vice Chairman of Pune Festival.

5.  Your Bank’s Senior Director Dr. Mukund Abhyankar had a 
meeting with our Hon’ble Prime Minister Narendra Modi, 
Hon’ble speaker of Loksabha Mrs. Sumitra Mahajan and 
Hon’ble Governor Shri. Raghuram Rajan in the capacity 
of Chairman of ‘NAFCUB’.

 
Dr. Mukund Abhyankar has been unanimously elected at 

Fine Arts Co-operative Limited,’’ New Delhi for a tenure 
of Five years.

Your Bank’s Chief General Manager – Accounts, Audit – 
Vigilance and Credit Supervision, Mrs. Nayan Lagad has been 

CIMA is the world’s largest and leading professional body of 
management accountants. Mrs. Nayan Lagad was selected 
for this award by eminent Jury Members as a mark of her 
contribution to Cosmos Bank and her outstanding work.

In accordance with the Annual General Meeting Held on  
22nd June 2014, it was resolved to amend Bye-law No.2 

New Delhi for registration.

Approval has been received on 15th September 2014 for all the 

Department, Government of India, New Delhi. Therefore from 
15th September 2014 the said Bye-laws have been made 
applicable to the Bank accordingly.

During the year under report, various renowned personalities 
graced your Bank with their visit. The prominent personalities 
amongst them were:-

Bank

Management, IIM Ahemdabad

Department of Agriculture, Government of India.

International 2013-14

We also take this opportunity to express our gratitude to 

we also express our gratitude towards the Co-operative 

Co-operation for the states of Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh,  

Bank Employee’s Union has a lion’s share in the progress of 
the Bank. We take this opportunity to express our gratitude 

Last but not the least, we owe a lot to our depositors, account 

this progress could not have been achieved.

Thanks to everyone from the bottom of my heart.

Chairman

Date : 22nd August, 2015
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Following Committees were formed to oversee the banking operations, loan sanction and to consider and approve policy 
matters.

Committee

8. Staff Committee

3. Executive Committee
Region)

5. Financial Inclusion Committee 11. PNPA Monitoring Committee

6. Audit Committee 12. Fraud Monitoring Committee

During the year, 113 meetings of Board of Directors and 28 meetings of the Sub-committees were held. Following are the 
attendance details of the same.

Meetings of Sub-Committees

Total No. of Meetings Total No. of Meetings

28 27 102 98

2. Shri. Madhukar Atre 28 27 55 55

3. Dr. Mukund Abhyankar 28 24 53 39

4. Dr. Smita Jog 28 26 32 28

28 26 70 63

28 27 27 24

7. Adv. Jayant Shaligram 28 26 28 24

8. Shri. Prakash Joshirao* 08 07 04 03

9. Shri. Sunil Sabnis 28 23 37 28

10. Shri. Rajeev Sabade* 08 08 04 04

28 27 54 51

12. Adv. Shripad Panchpor 28 23 47 43

13. Shri. Jitendra Shah 28 28 27 26

14. Shri. Shashikant Bugde ** 20 18 01 01

15. Shri. Arvind Deshpande** 20 18 17 16

* After being newly elected as Director, were present for the meetings since 04/01/2015.

** Were present for the Meetings before the Board Elections dated 28th December 2014.

In the year under report your Bank offered membership to 3087 individuals and organizations. Due to resignations and other 
reasons 1234 were reduced from the members list. Thus, as on 31st March 2015 the Bank comprises of 81240 members.
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done at these cells and such documents are scanned through Document Management System (DMS) to maintain permanent 

record of such documents.

Further as per guidelines of RBI, risk categorization of all the accounts is done and assigned risk is changed from time to 

regard. AMLOC (Anti Money Laundering Software) is used for screening of names, generation of various reports and alerts 

for transaction monitoring.

Bank in the year under report.

Report (NTR), Counterfeit Currency Report (CCR) and Cross Border Wire Transfer (CBWT), within the prescribed time limit is 

submitted to Financial Intelligence Unit – India (FIU – IND) as and when required.

The Bank has a strong focus on customer service and is committed to offer a memorable banking experience to customers. 

The bank has maintained its focus on product differentiation. The Bank is, however, constantly pursuing its goal of innovative 

products and technological up gradation in a cost effective manner for delivering qualitative customer service.

The Bank strongly believes in values like customer centricity, continuous learning, and technology with sensitivity, ethics 

in all our dealings with customers.

Solution provider staff at branches, Robust Grievance Redressal Mechanism, 24*7 Internet and Mobile Banking Helpdesk 

with facility of toll free numbers, Customer-Care contact center, Branch level customer service committee meetings with 

been made operational.
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Sunday, 22nd July 2012, Shivshankar Hall, Maharshinagar, Pune – 411037

meeting

1.  Amendment suggested in the in the meeting bye-laws of the bank / 

new bye-laws accepted.

 Bye-law No.3 – Area of Operation

 Bye-law No.12 – Authorized Share Capital

Statutory Auditors for the year 2012-13

Sunday, 4th August July 2013, Shivshankar Hall, Maharshinagar, Pune – 411037

 

in the meeting
1.  Amendment suggested in the(xxxiv), 6(a)(ii)(b), (b)(iv), 7 (iv)(b), 24 (i), (ii)

(a), 32 (iv), (xxiii), 38 bye-laws of the bank / new bye-laws accepted.
  Bye-law No.3,4 (x), (xviii), (xxiii)(a), (xxiii)(b), (xxiv), 5 (xv), (xxvi), (xxxi), 

(xxxiv), 6(a)(ii)(b), (b)(iv), 7(iv)(b), 24 (i), (ii)(a), 32 (iv), (xxiii), 38 (2) (a)(b) 
39

Auditors for the year 2012-13.

4.  Sanction was given to take interest free loan amount maximum upto `25 crores 

from General Reserves for construction of the building. A period of ten years was 

5.  Sanction was given for disbursement of dividend @ 12% for 2012-13.

Sunday, 22nd June 2014, Shivshankar Hall, Maharshinagar, Pune – 411037

 

in the meeting

1.  Amendment suggested in the bye-laws of the bank viz, sub clause 2,3,4,6,11 and 

28 / new bye-laws accepted.

Accountants as Statutory Auditors for FY 2014-15

3.  Approve and Declare Dividend @ 12%

1.  Members can directly credit the dividends payable to their Cosmos savings / current or loan accounts. Members may 
inform the branch name where they hold membership and their account and mention the same in the form available in 
the branches. This will enable the members to receive dividends in their account every year.

2.  According to the bye-law 48(iv), if the dividend amount is not paid within three years from the date of declaration, the 
amount on the dividend warrant shall be transferred to the Reserves. Therefore, members who have not collected the 

failing which the dividend amount will be transferred to the Reserves and will not be refunded to the members under any 
circumstances.

3. Please notify any change in your mailing address immediately.

4.  Nomination facility is available for savings account and shares. Members who have not submitted the Nomination forms 
are requested to do so at the earliest.
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5.  Your Bank has started Centralized Banking System (CBS) in all branches. In order to obtain important permanent 

6.  In order to ensure security of account balance and also to notify customers of various new schemes, SMS banking 
facility will be made available. You are therefore requested to register your mobile numbers and email IDs with the 
concerned branch.

7.  As per the provision in Multistate Co-op Societies Act, if a member of Multistate Co-op. Society remains absent for three 
Annual General Meetings consecutively and if leave is not granted for such absence by Annual General Meeting, his 
membership is automatically stands cancelled. Members should take note of this and attend the meetings. Otherwise 
they should intimate in writing their inability to attend.

8.  Demat account holders are requested to notify change in mailing address, bank account number etc. to the bank 
immediately. To avail of the Free SMS Alert facility provided by National Securities Depositors, Demat account holders 
are requested to register their mobile numbers. Demat account holders who have not yet mentioned their nominations 
are requested to do so immediately, and those who do not wish to mention nomination are requested to inform the same 
to the Demat department.

1.   As per Reserve Bank of India’s guidelines and the provisions of Prevention of Money Laundering Act 2002, it is 

channels. Notice in this respect was also published in local newspapers. However it has been observed that few 
customers have not yet done this mandatory compliance. All these customers are therefore requested to comply with 

to be withdrawn from such accounts.

2.   As per Reserve Bank of India’s guidelines certain enhancements and standardization in the security features and 
format of cheque have been done to prevent the frauds and delays occurred in cheque clearing process of the banks. 
Accordingly, Reserve Bank has directed all banks that only CTS-2010 (Standard) compliant cheques should be used 
and Non-CTS cheques should be cancelled from circulation. Your Bank has started issuing CTS-2010 (Standard) 
compliant cheques since 2011 and also communicated through different communication channels in this respect. 
Hence, all customers are hereby informed that those who have not collected CTS-2010 (Standard) cheques are 
requested to submit Non-CTS cheques available with them to their respective branch and collect the CTS-2010 
(Standard) compliant cheques.

3.    As directed in the Financial Bill 2015, TDS was made applicable on all deposits to all shareholders, members and 
nominal members with effect from 1st June, 2015. TDS will be applicable to Recurring and Fixed Deposits in case their 
cumulative interest amount exceeds `10,000/-. Similarly, while calculating TDS, your Bank will be considered as a 
single entity, i.e. if total interest earned in all the branches of your Bank together exceeds ̀ 10,000/-, it will be applicable 
for TDS. The said TDS is applicable for the Financial Year 2015-16.
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2015

31-3-2014 
`

No. 
›eâ.

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 

keâpex Je osCeer
SCH 31-3-2015 

`

 3,139,201,500.00 1. Share Capital / YeeieYeeb[Je} A  3,124,283,500.00

 13,684,314,328.99 2. Reserve Fund and Other Reserves / iebieepeUer Je Flej efveOeer B  15,401,088,227.56

 — 3. Principal and Subsidiary State Partnership Fund Account 
MeemeveeÛeer ØecegKe DeLeJee meneÙÙekeâejer Yeeefieoejer efveOeer

 —

 147,332,154,087.60 4. Deposits and Other Accounts /"sJeer Je DevÙe Keeleer C  158,350,762,494.61

 3,679,951,841.25 5. Borrowings / keâpex D  4,725,358,680.56

 1,937,617,313.25 6. Bills for Collection Being Bills Receivable (As per Contra) 
Jemegueer efmJekeâejuesueer efyeues (ogyesjpeerØeceeCes)

 2,260,694,120.50

 202,224.50 7. Branch Adjustments / MeeKee efceUJeCeer  3,624,630.00

8. Overdue Interest Reserve / Lekeâyeekeâer JÙeepe lejlego

 2,503,030,118.84 On Non-Performing Advances / Deveglheeefole keâpee&Jejerue  2,127,123,314.47

 88,449,094.96 9. Interest Payable / JÙeepe osCes  19,838,339.56

 3,649,446,402.66 10. Other Liabilities /Flej osCeer E  4,228,880,989.18

 35,247,575.00 11. Merged Banks Collection Account Payable 
efJeueerefvekeâjCe PeeuesuÙee yeBkeâebÛes keâueskeäMeve DekeâeQš hesSyeue

F  35,247,575.00

 846,090,304.03 12. veHeâe-leesše Keeles G  616,252,038.62

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS R

 176,895,704,791.08  190,893,153,910.06

Contingent Liabilities : 
mebYeeJÙe osCeer

 3,650,196,807.84 Bank Guarantees 
yeBkeâ nceer

 4,006,373,665.15

 4,709,345,138.18 Letters of Credit Issued 
uesšj Dee@Heâ ›esâef[š

 4,078,331,671.62

 2,680,889,466.00 Forward Exchange Contracts Purchase/Sale 
Heâe@jJe[& SkeämeÛeWpe keâe@@vš^@keäš hejÛesme /mesue

 2,280,157,221.00

 — Others: Depositor Education & Awareness Fund  146,499,892.02
Flej: "sJeeroej efMe#eCe DeeefCe peeefCeJe efveOeer

Notes on accounts form part of accounts

As per our Report of even date

 Signature to the Accounts including Schedules and Notes on Accounts

Sudhan D. Yardi, Partner
M. No. : 22887
For M/s. Yardi Prabhu & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
F.R.No. 111727 W

Nachiket Deo, Partner
M. No.: 117695
For M/s. P.G. Bhagwat
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
F.R.No. 101118W

Ghanasham Ranade, Partner
M. No. 100151
For M/s. Gunwani & Kolapkar
Chartered Accountants
Internal Auditor
F.R.NO.128698W

Place : Pune
Date : 22/05/2015
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31.3.2015 DeKesjÛee leeUsyebo

31-3-2014 
`

No. 
›eâ.

PROPERTY AND ASSETS 

eEpeoieer Je ÙesCes
SCH 31-3-2015 

`

 9,141,045,895.54 1. Cash and Bank Balances / ßeer efMeu}keâ Je yeBkesâleerue efMeu}keâ H  9,031,649,823.72

 1,275,541,942.75 2. Balances With Other Banks / Flej yeBkeâeleer} efMeu}keâ I  1,476,898,734.19

 — 3. Money at Call and Short Notice (in CBLO) / ceeieCeerkeâjleeÛe 
efceUCeeNÙee Jee Deuhe veesšerMeerves efceUCeeNÙee "sJeer

 —

 48,545,888,784.97 4. Investments / iegbleJeCetkeâ J  52,502,119,784.51

 102,952,841,881.29 5. Advances / keâpex K  111,597,591,989.40

6. Interest Receivable / JÙeepe ÙesCes
 876,795,666.05 Interest on Deposits & Securities 

"sJeer Je jesKÙeebJejerue JÙeepe
 968,645,952.52

 2,503,030,118.84 Overdue Interest on Loans & Advances 
keâpe&KeelÙeebJejerue Leefkeâle ÙesCes JÙeepe

 2,127,123,314.47

 1,937,617,313.25 7. Bills receivable being Bills for Collection(As per Contra ) 
Jemegueermee"er hee"efJeuesueer efyeues (ogyesjpeerØeceeCes)

 2,260,694,120.50

 4,778,477,671.37 8. Fixed Assets (Gross Block Less Accumulated 
Depreciation) / keâeÙece eEpeoieer

L  6,163,976,627.70

 4,134,623,679.94 9. Other Assets / Flej ÙesCeer M  4,014,950,995.56

 180,789,000.00 10. Non Banking Assets Acquired in Satisfaction of Claims 
keâpe& Hesâ[erle yeBkesâves Kejsoer kesâuesuÙee efceUkeâleer

 180,789,000.00

 421,076,490.00 11. Deferred Tax Asset / ef[Heâ[& š@keäme De@mesš  470,813,490.00

 147,976,347.08 12. Goodwill A/C - Merged Banks 
ieg[efJeue Keeles - efJeueerefvekeâjCe yeBkeâe

N  97,900,077.49

 176,895,704,791.08  190,893,153,910.06

Directors

Mukund L. Abhyankar 
Smita V. Jog 

Milind A. Kale

Govind R. Kshirsagar 
Jayant B. Shaligram
Prakash M. Joshirao

Sunil A. Sabnis 
Rajeev B. Sabade 
Pralhad B. Kokare

Shripad D. Panchpor 
Jitendra B. Shah

Umesh C. Datar (Staff Representative)

Vikrant P. Ponkshe
Managing Director

Krishnakumar K. Goyal
Chairman

Madhukar W. Atre
Vice Chairman

Suhas S. Gokhale
Jt. Managing Director

Nayan Lagad
Chief General Manager
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31-3-2015

31-3-2014 
`

No. 
›eâ.

EXPENDITURE 

KeÛe&
SCH 31-3-2015 

`

 11,950,513,680.43  1. Interest on Deposits, Borrowings etc. 
"sJeer Je keâpee&Jejer} efo}s}s JÙeepe

 12,860,973,231.74

 1,087,440,034.10  2. Salaries, Allowances, PF Contribution & Gratuity 
etc. / Heieej, Yeòes, HeÇe@. Heâb[, Jeie&Ceer DeeefCe ieÇ@ÛÙegF&šer F.

 1,233,954,052.27

 1,254,952.00  3. Directors Fees & Allowances / mebÛee}keâ ceb[U Heâer Je Yeòes  1,124,201.00

 492,580,207.38  4. Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Light etc. / 
Yee[s, keâj, efJecee Je Jeerpe F.

 571,075,214.63

 978,899.00  5. Legal Charges / keâeÙeosMeerj meuuÙeeyeeyele cegMeeefnje  403,449.00

 37,624,726.97  6. Postage, Telegram & Telephone / 
šHee}, leej Je šsef}Heâesve

 45,592,705.51

 21,348,720.78  7. Auditors Fee / DeeÙeJÙeÙe efvejer#ekeâ Heâer  23,989,576.60

 185,495,754.13  8. Depreciation, repairs, maintenance to Bank's 
Property /Fceejle,Heâefve&Ûej,keâe@cHÙegšme& F.Jejer} Peerpe Je 
og®mleer KeÛe&

 281,852,565.32

 106,917,354.61  9. Stationery, Printing, Advt. Sadil etc. 
}sKeve meeefnlÙe, ÚHeeF&, peeefnjele, meeefo} F.

 109,189,806.61

 85,189,753.39 10. Amortisation of Premium on Securities 
Deceesše&ÙePesMeve Dee@Heâ efHeÇefceÙece Dee@ve efmekeäÙegefjšermed

 106,904,967.30

 363,310,404.11 11. Other Expenditure /Flej KeÛe& O  450,970,287.92

 55,273,420.97 12. Goodwill W/Off - Merged Banks / 
ieg[efJeue jeF&š Dee@Heâ efJeueerve ye@bkeâe

 20,536,275.00

 2,308,649,324.83 13. (i)  Provision for Assets / De@mesšmedmee"er lejleto P  2,043,252,824.81

 10,047,000.00 (ii)  Reserve for Infrastructure & Housing 
Development / HeeÙeeYetle megefJeOee Je ie=nefJekeâeme lejleto

 9,549,461.96

883,721,277.74 14. Bad Debts Written off / yeg[erle keâpex& jeFš Dee@Heâ 1,738,541,023.89

 778,715,273.41 15. keâj DeekeâejCeer HetJe& veHeâe  866,689,301.59

380,000,000.00 16. Income Tax - Current Year /DeeÙekeâj DenJeeue Je<e& 340,000,000.00

 (259,383,577.00) Income Tax Earlier Years (Excess)/Short 
DeeÙekeâj ceeieerue Je<eea

 —  —

15,107,000.00 Add /(Less): Deferred Tax / ef[Heâ[& š@keäme  (49,737,000.00)  290,263,000.00

 642,991,850.41  vekeäle veHeâe  576,426,301.59
 (200,150,324.83) 17. Reversal of Excess Investment Fluctuation 

Reserve / iegbleJeCetkeâ Ûe{ Gleej efveOeer peeoe lejleto pecee
 —

 843,142,175.24 18.  
vekeäle veHeâe leeUsyeboekeâ[s Jeie&

 576,426,301.59

NOTES ON ACCOUNTS R

18,369,060,783.85 20,364,598,945.15

Notes on accounts form part of accounts
As per our Report of even date

 Signature to the Accounts including Schedules and Notes on Accounts

Sudhan D. Yardi, Partner
M. No. : 22887
For M/s. Yardi Prabhu & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
F.R.No. 111727 W

Nachiket Deo, Partner
M. No.: 117695
For M/s. P.G. Bhagwat
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
F.R.No. 101118W

Ghanasham Ranade, Partner
M. No. 100151
For M/s. Gunwani & Kolapkar
Chartered Accountants
Internal Auditor
F.R.NO.128698W

Place : Pune
Date : 22/05/2015
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31-3-2015 DeKesjÛes veHeâe-leesše he$ekeâ
31-3-2014 

`
No. 
›eâ.

INCOME 

Glhevve
SCH 31-3-2015 

`

 15,550,915,680.71  1. Interest & Discount 
JÙeepe Je keâmej

Q  16,657,194,295.25

 932,123,609.20  2.  
jesKes efJe›eâerJejer} veHeâe

 1,123,313,188.91

558,065,931.27  3. Commission / keâefceMeve 548,775,632.06

88,375,475.03  4. Exchange / nbÏ[CeeJeU 71,354,612.07

 27,274,884.33  5. Interest Recovery On NPAs Written Off 
jeFš Dee@Heâ keâsuesuÙee DeveglHeeefole keâpee&Jejerue JÙeepeeÛeer Jemegueer

 16,247,389.31

 6. Other Receipts / Flej pecee
 67,466.05 a)  Rent / Yee[ss  64,479.00

 1,230,629.60 b)  Share Transfer Fee, Form Fee etc. 
Yeeie Jeie&, Heâe@ce& Heâer F.

 1,083,133.84

 44,032,756.82 c)  Locker Rent /}e@keâj Yee[s  50,497,188.75

114,062,309.00 d)  Interest on Income Tax Refund 
DeeÙekeâj hejleeJÙeeJejerue JÙeepe

 —

 3,737,290.90 e)  Other Income / Flej GlHeVe  515,764.65

 12,081,020.37 f)  Depository Income / ef[Hee@efPešjer GlHeVe  12,355,703.94

 81,405,566.24 g)  Principal Recovery in NPAs Written off. 
jeFš Dee @He â keâsuesuÙee DeveglHeeefole keâpee&ceOeerue 
cegöueeÛeer Jemegueer

 76,210,008.89

 140,726,279.07  140,726,279.07

 37,417,886.59  7.  
Fceejleer efJe›eâerJejerue veHeâe

— 

 17,000.00  8. Excess Provision For Merged Bank 
Losses Written Back / efJeueerve yeBkesâÛeer peeoe 
lejleto hejle pecee

 36,446,524.59

38,782,000.00 9. Provision For Investment Diminution Not 
Required W/Back / jesKes DeJecetuÙeve efveOeerletve pecee

 —

 — 10. Provision For Restructured Assets Not 
Required Written Back/ efjmš̂keäÛe[& De@mesšmedJejerue 
lejleto Hejle pecee

32,000,000.00

879,471,277.74 11. B.D.D.R Written Back / yeg[erle Je mebMeefÙele keâpe&& 
efveOeerletve pecee

1,738,541,023.89

 18,369,060,783.85 20,364,598,945.15

Directors

Mukund L. Abhyankar 
Smita V. Jog 

Milind A. Kale

Govind R. Kshirsagar 
Jayant B. Shaligram
Prakash M. Joshirao

Sunil A. Sabnis 
Rajeev B. Sabade 
Pralhad B. Kokare

Shripad D. Panchpor 
Jitendra B. Shah

Umesh C. Datar (Staff Representative)

Vikrant P. Ponkshe
Managing Director

Krishnakumar K. Goyal
Chairman

Madhukar W. Atre
Vice Chairman

Suhas S. Gokhale
Jt. Managing Director

Nayan Lagad
Chief General Manager
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

31-3-2014 
`

PARTICULARS 
leheMeerue

31-3-2015 
`

31-3-2015 
`

SCHEDULE-"A"
 10,000,000,000.00 SHARE CAPITAL  10,000,000,000.00

 A) Authorised Capital
100000000 Shares of `100/- each 
DeefOeke=âle YeeieYeeb[Je} (HeÇlÙeskeâer `100/- HeÇceeCes)

 B) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up : 
Jemet} YeeieYeeb[Je}

 3,139,201,500.00 Shares of ` 100/- each fully paid:
held by :
Individuals  :  27293688 2,729,368,800.00
Others  :  3949147  394,914,700.00

 3,124,283,500.00
 3,139,201,500.00  3,124,283,500.00

SCHEDULE-"B"
RESERVE FUND & OTHER FUNDS 
iebieepeUer Je Flej efveOeer

 2,324,927,797.61  1) Statutory Reserve Fund / iebieepeUer 2,491,377,603.95
 1,224,662,052.30  2) Building Fund / Fceejle efveOeer 1,224,662,052.30
 3,203,071,578.41  3) Reserve for Bad & Doubtful Debts 

yeg[erle Je mebMeefÙele keâpe& efveOeer
3,546,944,245.18

 32,000,000.00  4) Provision for Restructured Assets 
efjmš^JeäÛe[&& De@mesšmedJejer} lejleto

—

 356,260,063.00  5) Contingent Provision for Standard Assets 
mšB[[& De@mesšmedJejer} mebYeeJÙe lejleto

 376,932,063.00

 111,590,894.71  6) Contingent Provision against depreciation in 
Investments / iegbleJeCetkeâ IemeeNÙeemee"er mebYeeJÙe lejleto

 79,024,312.44

 661,084,323.22  7) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 
jbesKes DeJecetuÙeve efveJeejCe efveOeer

 861,584,323.22

 113,810,326.87  8) Provision for Ahmedabad Co-op. Bank Losses 
(Since Amalgamated) 
Denceoeyeeo yeBkesâÛee leesše Je lejletoeRmee"er jeKeerJe

 77,363,802.28

 500,000.00  9) Staff Death Benevolent Fund 
mesJekeâ cejCeesòej Jeejme meneÙÙe efveOeer

 2,000,000.00

 3,011,916.24 10) Staff Development Fund / mesJekeâ efJekeâeme efveOeer  3,197,484.24
 25,362,714.83 11) Member Child Education Fund 

meYeemeo heeuÙe efMe#eCe efveOeer
 27,229,410.83

 92,700.69 12) Social / Member Commitment Reserve 
meYeemeo/meeceeefpekeâ yeebbefOe}keâer efveOeer

 83,419.69

 2,774,937,631.02 13) Building Revaluation Reserve 
Fceejle Hetvecet&uÙeebkeâve efveOeer

3,783,833,653.38

 74,286,266.00 14) Reserve For Infrastructure & Housing 
Development / heeÙeeYetle megefJeOee Je ie=nefJekeâeme efveOeer

 83,835,727.96

 790,853,860.85 15) Reserve for Unforseen Losses 
Deekeâefmcekeâ leesšŸeemee"er jeKeerJe efveOeer

 855,153,050.85

 1,613,747,892.40 16) General Reserve / meJe&meeOeejCe efveOeer  1,613,752,767.40

 374,114,310.84 17) Earmarked Fund for ARC/ SDeejmeer FDejceeke&dâ[ Hebâ[  374,114,310.84  15,401,088,227.56

 13,684,314,328.99  15,401,088,227.56
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

31-3-2014 
`

PARTICULARS 
leheMeerue

31-3-2015 
`

31-3-2015 
`

SCHEDULE-"C"
DEPOSIT AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 
"sJeer Je DevÙe Keeleer

 (i) TERM DEPOSITS / cegole "sJeer
 103,159,808,092.49 a)  From Individuals & Others / JÙeefkeäleiele 110,850,169,389.83

— b)  From Central Co-op Banks / ceOÙeJeleea menkeâejer yeBkeäme —

 18,830,852,907.51 c)  From Other Societies/ Flej mebmLee  20,790,511,377.59

 121,990,661,000.00 131,640,680,767.42
(ii) SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS / yeÛele Keeles "sJeer

 18,596,065,025.30 a)  From Individuals & Others / JÙeefkeäleiele  19,668,196,119.79

— b)  From Central Co-op Banks / ceOÙeJeleea menkeâejer yeBkeäme —

 547,733,407.84 c)  From Other Societies / Flej mebmLee  562,319,601.62

 19,143,798,433.14  20,230,515,721.41
(iii) CURRENT DEPOSITS / Ûeeuet Keeles "sJeer

 5,838,916,586.69 a)  From Individuals & Others / JÙeefkeäleiele  5,957,279,088.48

— b)  From Central Co-op Banks / ceOÙeJeleea menkeâejer yeBkeäme —

 358,778,067.77 c)  From Other Societies/ Flej mebmLee  522,286,917.30

 6,197,694,654.46   6,479,566,005.78
 147,332,154,087.60  158,350,762,494.61

SCHEDULE-"D"

BORROWINGS / keâpex
 998,905,309.25  1) CBLO Borrowings / meer.yeer.Sue.Dees.keâpex —

—  2) REPO  2,362,213,402.56
 179,745,000.00  3) FCY Borrowings - USD  125,000,000.00

 2,301,301,532.00  4) Long Term (Subordinated) Deposits  2,238,145,278.00
 200,000,000.00  5) efveÙee&le ›esâ[erš efjHeâeÙeveevme —

 4,725,358,680.56
 3,679,951,841.25  4,725,358,680.56

SCHEDULE-"E"

OTHER LIABILITIES / Flej osCeer
 159,151,637.19  a) Outstanding Payments / efyeues osCes  230,730,161.04

 11,425,441.93  b) Dividend Payable / ueeYeebMe osCes  11,552,532.75

 289,779,184.09  c) Suspense Account / Deveecele  268,452,007.83

 379,766,999.34  d) Payslip Payable / HesmueerHe HesSyeue  383,068,897.34

 354,764,568.26  e) Other Liabilities / Flej osCeer  392,973,869.63

 226,752,710.34  f) Sundries / Flej  359,367,339.72

 2,210,204,514.00  g) Income Tax Provision / DeeÙekeâj lejleto  2,550,204,514.00

 2,032,092.00  h) Interest Received in Advance on Export Credit 
efveÙee&le keâpee&Jejerue JÙeepe DeeieeT pecee

 9,146,185.35

 15,569,255.51 
  

 i) Collection Account Recovery Merged Banks-  
Amravati Peoples Co-op Bank 
efJeueerve yeBkeâebÛes Jemegueer Keeles - DecejeJeleer heerheume keâes.Dee@He.yeBkeâ

 23,385,481.52 
 

 4,228,880,989.18
 3,649,446,402.66  4,228,880,989.18
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

31-3-2014 
`

PARTICULARS 
leheMeerue

31-3-2015 
`

31-3-2015 
`

SCHEDULE-"F"
MERGED BANKS COLLECTION 
ACCOUNT PAYABLE
efJeueerveerkeâjCe PeeuesuÙee yeBkeâebÛes keâueskeäMeve DekeâeQš HesSyeue

21,323,800.00  1) Unnati Co-op. Bank Ltd., Baroda / GVeleer men. yeBkeâ 21,323,800.00
13,923,775.00  2) Sushil Kumar Nahata Co-op. Bank, Bhusawal 

megMeer}kegâceej veeneše yeBkeâ
13,923,775.00

 
 35,247,575.00  35,247,575.00

SCHEDULE-"G"
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

 966,876,679.79  
ceeieerue leeUsyeboevegmeej veHeâe

 846,090,304.03

Less: Appropriation / Jepee : efJeYeeieCeer
 241,040,830.00  a) Statutory Reserve Fund / iebieepeUer  160,747,970.00
 349,329,755.00  b) Dividend / ueeYeebMe  374,287,487.00

 9,641,634.00  c) Education Fund / efMe#eCe efveOeer  6,429,920.00
 96,416,332.00  d) Reserve for Unforseen Losses 

Deekeâefmcele leesšŸeemee"er jeKeerJe efveOeer
 64,299,190.00

 200,000,000.00  e) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 
jesKes DeJecetuÙeve efveJeejCe efveOeer

 200,500,000.00

 67,500,000.00  f) Building Fund / Fceejle efveOeer  —
 2,948,128.79  39,825,737.03

 843,142,175.24  
DeefOekeâ : Ûeeuet Je<ee&Ûee veHeâe

 576,426,301.59

 846,090,304.03  616,252,038.62
SCHEDULE - "H"

CASH & BANK BALANCES 
jesKe efMeuuekeâ Je yeBkeâebkeâ[erue efMeuuekeâ

 850,133,712.00  a) Cash In Hand / jesKe efMeuuekeâ  642,629,016.50
 8,076,646,115.64  b) Reserve Bank of India / efjPeJn&& yeBkeâ Ûeeuet Keeles  8,189,798,327.76

 2,119,536.14  c) Current Deposits with State Co-operative Bank 
Ltd. / mšsš keâes-Dee@he yeBkeâebkeâ[erue Ûeeuet Keeleer

 1,029,983.19

 70,402,195.80  d) Current Deposits with Dist.Central Co-op. Bank 
Ltd. / ef[mš̂erJeäš mesbš̂ue keâes-Dee@he yeBkesâkeâ[erue Ûeeuet Keeleer

 68,318,629.80

 111,059,249.96  e) Current Deposits SBI & its Subsidiaries 
mšsš yeBkeâ Je Ghe yeBkeâebkeâ[erue Ûeeuet Keeleer

 106,159,999.47

 13,087,864.00  f) Fixed Deposits with State Co-op. Bank Ltd. 
mšsš keâes-Dee@he yeBkesâkeâ[erue cegole "sJeer

 22,033,962.00

 17,597,222.00  g) Fixed Deposits with SBI & its Subsidiaries 
mšsš yeBkeâ Je Ghe yeBkeâebkeâ[erue cegole "sJeer

 1,679,905.00

 9,141,045,895.54  9,031,649,823.72
SCHEDULE - "I"

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 
Flej yeBkeâebkeâ[erue efMeuuekeâ

 977,751,330.17  a) Current Deposits with other Banks 
Flej yeBkeâebkeâ[erue Ûeeuet Keeleer

 1,138,718,067.66

 297,790,612.58  b) Fixed Deposits with other Banks 
Flej yeBkeâebkeâ[erue cegole "sJeer

 338,180,666.53

 1,275,541,942.75  1,476,898,734.19
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

31-3-2014 
`

PARTICULARS 
leheMeerue

31-3-2015 
`

31-3-2015 
`

SCHEDULE-'J'

INVESTMENTS / iegbleJeCetkeâ
 42,587,230,759.97 (i) In Central & State Govt Securities 

mejkeâejer jesKes (meWvš^ue ieJncexš Je mšsš ieJncexš)
 46,517,256,759.51

Face Value ` 45,509,017,249.00 
(`42,617,473,849.00)
Market Value ` 46,644,024,328.18 
(` 42,499,899,665.26)
[Including ` 633,615,108.40 (`1,764,653,777.71)
Pledged for Treasury Operations ]

 — (ii) Other Approved Securities / Flej efJeMJemle jesKes  —
 10,658,025.00 (iii) Shares of Co-operative Banks / menkeâejer yeBkesâÛes Yeeie  10,648,025.00

 1,319,000,000.00 (iv) PSU Bonds / Heefy}keâ meskeäšj Deb[jšseEkeâie yeeB[med  1,659,000,000.00
 2,500,000.00 (v) Shares of Subsidiary Co.-Cosmos eSolutions 

& Services Pvt.Ltd." / Ghe kebâheveerÛes Yeeie - keâe@mecee@me 
F&-meesuÙetMevme DeeefCe mee|Jnmesmed Øee. efue.

 2,500,000.00

 4,626,500,000.00 (vi) Security Receipts / efmekeäÙegjeršer efjmeerHšme  4,312,715,000.00
 48,545,888,784.97  52,502,119,784.51

SCHEDULE-"K"
ADVANCES / keâpex

1) Short Term Loan, Cash Credit, Overdraft and 
Bill Discounted of which secured against:
DeuHecegole keâpex- ke@âMe ›eâs[erš, DeesJnj[^eHeäš, nÏb[er 
KejsoerHewkeâer mebjef#ele keâpex

 12,230,173.03  a)  Government & Other approved securities 
/ mejkeâejer Je efvece mejkeâejer jesKes

 14,488,834.53

 47,313,719,831.23  b)  Other Tangible Securities/Flej leejCe  50,654,753,357.49
 679,255.06  c)  Personal Sureties / keâpe&oejeÛÙee JewÙeeqkeälekeâ 

peyeeyeoejer Je peeefcevekeâerJejerue
 499,744.26

 47,326,629,259.32  50,669,741,936.28
 3,883,534,266.80  i)  Amount overdue 

` 5,532,631,329.94 
Hewkeâer Lekeâyeekeâer

 ii)  Amounts considered Bad & 
Doubtful of recovery  
` 6,338,645,839.47 
ÙeeHewkeâer mebMeefÙele Je yeg[erle

2) Medium Term Loan of which Secured against: 

ceOÙece cegole keâpee&Hewkeâer mebjef#ele keâpex
 6,725,678.51 a)  Government & Other approved Securities 

/ mejkeâejer Je efvece mejkeâejer jesKes
 6,741,872.96

 25,023,955,269.02 b)  Other Tangible Securities / Flej leejCe  26,106,343,357.61
 488,217,128.72 c)  Personal Sureties / ke âpe &oejeÛÙee Je wÙee f Je älek e â 

peyeeyeoeje r Je peee f ceveke âe rJeje rue 
(of the above amount receivable from 
State / Central Govt. of India against Debt 
Waiver Scheme is `0.95 lac)

 429,584,830.05

 25,518,898,076.25  26,542,670,060.62
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

31-3-2014 
`

PARTICULARS 
leheMeerue

31-3-2015 
`

31-3-2015 
`

SCHEDULE-"K" (Contd.)

ADVANCES / keâpex
 816,082,519.45  i)  Amount overdue / 

` 1,316,957,412.52 
Hewkeâer Lekeâyeekeâer

 ii)  Amounts considered Bad & 
Doubtful of recovery / ÙeeHewkeâer 
` 2,038,713,521.92 
mebMeefÙele Je yeg[erle

3) Long Term Loans of which Secured against: 
efoIe& cegole keâpee&Hewkeâer mebjef#ele keâpex

— a)  Government & Other approved 
Securities / mejkeâejer Je efvece mejkeâejer jesKes

—

 29,949,149,974.24 b)  Other Tangible Securites / Flej leejCe  34,219,733,413.23

 158,164,571.48 c)  Personal Sureties / ke âpe &oejeÛÙee Je wÙee f Je älek e â 
peyeeyeoeje r Je peee f ceveke âe rJeje rue

 165,446,579.27
 

 30,107,314,545.72  34,385,179,992.50
 1,007,937,288.13  i) Amount overdue ` 736,805,581.41 

Hewkeâer Lekeâyeekeâer
 ii)  Amounts considered Bad 

& Doubtful of recovery ` 
1,918,204,622.80 
ÙeeHewkeâer mebMeefÙele Je yeg[erle

 102,952,841,881.29  111,597,591,989.40

Schedule “L”  

Fixed Assets 
(Amt. in `)

Fixed Assets Gross Block Depreciation  Net Block
Opening Additions /

Adjustment 

During Year

Revaluation Deletions 

During Year

Closing Upto 

31.03.2014

For The 

Year 14-15

Deletion Total WDV As On 

31.03.2014

WDV As On 

31.03.2015

1.  Freehold Land 1,312,911,820.00 0.00 641,367,663.00 0.00 1,954,279,483.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,312,911,820.00 1,954,279,483.00

2.  Leasehold Land / 

Premises

8,414,882.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,414,882.36 334,882.36 106,527.00 0.00 441,409.36 8,080,000.00 7,973,473.00

3.  Buildings 2,558,377,552.33 608,240,824.24 410,611,443.41 0.00 3,577,229,819.98 385,472,138.17 65,667,818.61 * 0.00 451,139,956.78 2,172,905,414.16 3,126,089,863.20

4. Furniture & Fixtures 459,667,719.31 309,187,577.71 0.00 1,550,309.67 767,304,987.35 231,098,613.06 51,396,050.75 1,335,982.35 281,158,681.46 228,569,106.25 486,146,305.89

5.  Computers & Other 

H/W & Electric Items

722,626,564.40 369,684,602.49 0.00 11,468,877.91 1,080,842,288.98 468,065,685.72 112,208,766.96 9,495,148.17 570,779,304.51 254,560,878.68 510,062,984.47

6. Vehicle 36,050,245.39 1,497,779.00 0.00 426,808.00 37,121,216.39 19,546,079.03 4,804,027.14 426,803.00 23,923,303.17 16,504,166.36 13,197,913.22

7. Work In Progress 

including |Capital 

Advance

784,946,285.92 407,530,269.00 0.00 1,126,249,950.00 66,226,604.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 784,946,285.92 66,226,604.92

 Grand Total 5,882,995,069.71 1,696,141,052.44 1,051,979,106.41 1,139,695,945.58 7,491,419,282.98 1,104,517,398.34 234,183,190.46 11,257,933.52 1,327,442,655.28 4,778,477,671.37 6,163,976,627.70

* Depreciation of ` 43083084.05 withdrawn from Building Revaluation Reserve.
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

31-3-2014 
`

PARTICULARS 
leheMeerue

31-3-2015 
`

31-3-2015 
`

SCHEDULE-"M"

OTHER ASSETS / Flej ÙesCeer
 18,834,736.07  a) Deposits / ef[Hee@Peeršmed  19,375,518.07

 26,286,993.68  b) Clearing A/c / meceeMeesOeve Keeles  522,244.80

 10,974,748.61  c) Tasalmat / lemeueceele  26,623,459.61

 40,885,016.00  d) Adhesive Stamp & Silver Coins Stock 
DeOesefmeJn mš@cHe Je ÛeeboerÛÙee ieCesMe cegefõkeâe

 34,178,256.00

 34,969,024.64  e) Advance to Suppliers 
efJeefJeOe KejsoerHeesšer efouesueer DeeieeT jkeäkeâce

 44,944.00

 29,428,932.90  f) TDS - Invest. Interest, Others 
šer[erSme jesKes JÙeepeeJejerue Je Flej GlHeVeeJejerue

 30,285,421.47

 841,900,164.04  g) Other Receivable / Flej ÙesCeer  323,791,786.45

 137,320,782.54  h) Landlord Rent Deposit 
peeiee ceeuekeâebvee peeiee Yee[sHeesšer efouesueer DeeieeT jkeäkeâce

 153,009,717.74

 9,610,929.09  i) Stationery Stock in hand / mšsMevejer efMeu}keâ  7,461,862.82

 6,477,886.00  j) Lease Assets / ueerpe De@mesšmed  2,442,386.00

 2,974,238.00  k) Hire Purchase Debtors / neÙej HejÛesme ÙesCeer  2,887,519.00

 291,275,812.00  l) Income Tax / DeeÙekeâj  431,507,103.00

 2,498,448,390.00  m) Advance Income Tax / DeeieeT DeeÙekeâj YejCee  2,798,448,390.00

 13,442,806.91  n) Capital Exp. on Lease Premises 
Yee[ŸeebÛÙee peeieebmee"er keâsuesuee Yeeb[Jeueer KeÛe&

 14,184,798.33

 9,866,357.00  o)  
SkeämÛeWpe HeÇe@efHeâš De@[dpesmšceWš DekeâeQš

 5,030,709.44

 8,879,734.90  p) Sundries / Flej  7,739,389.90

 4,744,410.83  q) Other Assets / Flej De@mesšmed  3,904,377.06

 2,046,437.91  r) Interest Subvention claim Receivable from RBI 
efjPeJn&& yeBkeâskeâ[tve efveÙee&leoejemee"er JÙeepeeheesšer ÙesCeejer jkeäkeâce

—

 50,456,278.82  s) Prepaid Expenses / DeeieeT KeÛe&  29,785,747.19

 15,800,000.00  t) Cash margin with CCIL 
meermeerDeeÙeSue keâ[erue ke@âMe ceeefpe&&ve

 40,600,000.00

 80,000,000.00  u) Securities with Court (Amravati Bank) 
keâesše&keâ[s pecee Demeuesues jesKes (DecejeJeleer yeBkeâ)

 80,000,000.00

—  v) DEAF Claim Receivable/ [sHeâ keäuesce efjefmeJnsyeue  3,127,364.68

  4,014,950,995.56

 4,134,623,679.94  4,014,950,995.56

SCHEDULE-"N"
GOODWILL ACCOUNT - MERGED BANKS 
hele Keeles efJeueerveerkeâjCe yeBkeâe

113,810,326.87 1) Co-op. Bank of Ahmedabad 
keâes-Dee@He. yeBkeâ Dee@Heâ Denceoeyeeo

77,363,802.28

34,166,020.21 2) Amravati Peoples Co-op. Bank 
DecejeJeleer heerheume keâes-Dee@He. yeBkeâ

20,536,275.21 
 

147,976,347.08 97,900,077.49
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

31-3-2014 
`

PARTICULARS 
leheMeerue

31-3-2015 
`

31-3-2015 
`

SCHEDULE - “O”

OTHER EXPENDITURE / Flej KeÛe&
 1,928,332.01 i) Subscription & Contribution / Flej mebmLeebÛeer Jeie&Ceer  2,094,104.76 

 1,689,381.00 ii) Society Charges / mebmLee osKeYeeue KeÛe&  1,374,634.00 

 3,293,907.00 iii) Fuel Expenses on Vehicle / Jeenve FbOeve KeÛe&  2,994,017.00 

 2,667,093.00 iv) Cash Van  Exps. / ke@âMe Jn@ve KeÛe&  2,802,233.00 

 2,492,568.00 v) Meeting Expenses  / meYee KeÛe&  1,650,349.87 

 56,118,142.85 vi) Security Service Charges / megj#ee KeÛe&  71,790,430.45 

 10,915,210.13 vii) Clearing Charges / meceeMeesOeve KeÛe&  8,484,690.26 

 1,095,737.10 viii) Depository Expenditure / ef[Hee@efPešjer KeÛe&  1,097,163.16 

 97,772,665.60 ix) Outsourcing Expenses / DeeTšmeesefmeËie KeÛe&  96,904,265.00 

 2,218,967.85 x) Inauguration / Anniversary Day Expenses
GodIeešve Je JeOee&Heveefove KeÛe&

 4,095,283.60 
 

 13,053,664.64 xi) Legal Expenses & Court Expenses /  
efueieue Je keâesš& KeÛe&

 14,376,934.46 

 6,345,380.20 xii) NFS & Bancs service charges /  
SveSHeâSme Je ye@@bkeämed mee|Jnme KeÛe&

 42,375,025.97

 2,762,608.91 xiii) Bank Charges  / ye@bkeâ Ûeepexmed  3,095,740.78 

 685,342.62 xiv) Board of Directors Lodging / Boarding /  

Travelling Expenses / mebÛeeuekeâ ceb[U uee@eEpeie, yeesef[Ëie 
Je HeÇJeeme KeÛe&

 284,652.29 

 1,416,757.00 xv) Staff Travelling, Lunch  etc./ mesJekeâ HeÇJeeme Je Yeespeve 
F. KeÛe&

 1,662,298.00 

 988,930.76 xvi) Auditor’s /Consultants Expenses/  
Dee@ef[šme&/meuueeieej KeÛe& 

 1,125,108.01 

 11,860,855.75 xvii) Sundries / Flej KeÛe&  33,228,969.06 

 5,559,570.00 xviii) Transaction Charges (CCIL) /  
meer.meer.DeeÙe.Sue. JÙeJenej Ûeepexme

 11,221,465.50 

 11,068,185.44 xix) Provision for Other Receivables / Flej ÙesCes lejleto  70,053.00 

 3,778,211.14 xx) Charges for Market View Software  
ceekex&âš J¢et mee@HeäšJesDej Ûeepex&med

 3,195,974.17 

 9,730,401.12 xxi) Visa Charges / efJnmee Ûeepexmed  8,630,587.99 

 81,722,250.91 xxii) I.T. Services Consultancy & Maintenance 

charges / DeeÙe.šer. keâvmeušvmeer Je cesšWvevme KeÛe&
 82,226,744.60 

 1,844,746.40 xxiii) Tax & Other  Consultancy Charges / š@keäme Je Flej 
keâvmeušvmeer KeÛe&

 3,280,950.80 

22,663,941.00 xxiv) Trusteeship Fee - ARC / š^mšerefMeHe Heâer- SDeejmeer  8,088,100.50

796,350.00 xxv) Retainer Fees for Recruitment / efjšsveme& Heâer Heâe@j 
efjkeÇgâšceWš

 80,000.00 

318,540.00 xxvi) Recovery Agency Charges / efjkeâJnjer Spevmeer KeÛe& —

3,164,133.24 xxvii) Record Keeping/ Data Maintenance Expenses / 
jskeâe[& efkeâefHebie/[sše ceWšsvevme KeÛe&

 2,823,849.09 

11,869.00 xxviii) Service Tax / meefJn&me š@keäme  29,790,464.00 
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SCHEDULES TO BALANCE SHEET

31-3-2014 
`

PARTICULARS 
leheMeerue

31-3-2015 
`

31-3-2015 
`

— xxix) Board Of Directors Election Expenses / mebÛeeuekeâ 
ceb[U efveJe[Cetkeâ KeÛe&

 6,978,019.03 

3,910,926.44 xxx) ATM/SWIFT/Internet Banking/Mobile  
Banking / Rupay Charges / SšerSce/efmJeHeäš/Fbšjvesš  

 2,872,525.57 

1,435,735.00 xxxi) Financial Inclusion & Business Promotion  
Expenses/ efJeòeerÙe meceeJesMeve Je JÙeJemeeÙe Je=æer KeÛe&

 2,275,654.00  450,970,287.92 

363,310,404.11  450,970,287.92 

   SCHEDULE - “P”

PROVISION  FOR  ASSETS De@mesšdmee"er lejleto
 2,075,700,000.00 a) Bad & Doubtful Debt Reserve  /  

yeg[erle Je mebMeefÙele keâpe& efveOeer
 2,022,580,824.81

 32,799,000.00 b) Contingent Prov. Against Standard Assets / 
mšB[[& De@mesšmedJejerue mebYeeJÙe lejleto

 20,672,000.00 

 200,150,324.83 c) Investment Depreciation Reserve /  
iegbleJeCetkeâ IemeeNÙeemee"er mebYeeJÙe lejleto

—

 2,308,649,324.83     2,043,252,824.81  

SCHEDULE - “Q”  
   INCOME FROM INTEREST & DISCOUNT / 

JÙeepe Je keâmej GlHeVe
 12,042,560,502.84 1) Interest on Loans & Advances / keâpee&Jejerue JÙeepe  12,816,720,828.89 

 3,508,355,177.87 2) Interest from Investments / iegbleJeCetkeâerJejerue JÙeepe  3,840,473,466.36 

 15,550,915,680.71   16,657,194,295.25

SCHEDULE “R”

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2015 AND 
BALANCE SHEET AS ON EVEN DATE.

I 1.  OVERVIEW

  The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd. (“the bank”) was established on 18th January 1906. The bank is a multi-state 

scheduled co-operative bank having 140 branches in 7 states as on 31st March, 2015. The Bank is licensed by the 

Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as ‘Authorized Dealers’ in Foreign Exchange transactions under category–1.

  2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

basis of accounting, unless otherwise stated, and comply with generally accepted accounting principles in India, 

statutory requirements prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act 1949, and the Multi State Co-operative 

Societies Act 2002, circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, the 

Accounting Standards (AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and current practices 

prevailing within the banking industry in India.
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  3.  USE OF ESTIMATES

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 

statements are prudent and reasonable. Any revision to the accounting estimates is recognized prospectively.

II. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 1. Accounting Convention -

 2. Revenue Recognition

  Items of income and expenditure are accounted on accrual basis except for the following: -

directive issued by the RBI. Unrealized interest on non-performing advances is shown under ‘Overdue 

Interest Reserve’ and as ‘Interest Receivable’ on liability side and asset side respectively.

  b. Commission and Exchange are fully recognized as income on realization.

  c. Locker Rent is recognized on receipt basis, to the extent of income accrued and due.

 3. Investments

following categories:

   i)  Held to Maturity (HTM)

   ii)  Available for Sale (AFS)

   iii) Held for Trading ( HFT)

    i.  Central & State Government Securities

   ii.  Other Approved Securities

    iii.  Shares of Co-op. Banks

   iv.  PSU Bonds

   v.  Shares in Subsidiary Co.

   vi.  Security Receipts
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  c. Investments purchased under HTM category are accounted at cost. Investments transferred from AFS 

category to HTM are accounted at lower of cost or depreciated value on the date of shifting. Premium, if any, 

on investments under HTM category is amortized over the residual life of the investment.

  d. Investments under “HFT” and “AFS” categories are marked to market on the basis of guidelines issued by the 

RBI. While net depreciation, if any, under each of the categories has been provided for, and net appreciation, 

if any, has been ignored.

  e. For the purpose of valuation, market value in the case of Central and State Government securities, PSU 

bonds is determined as per RBI guidelines on the basis of the “Yield to Maturity” indicated by Primary Dealers 

Association of India (PDAI)/ Fixed Income and Money Market Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA). 

Shares of co-operative Banks and subsidiary company are stated at cost.

  f. The transfer of investments from one category to another is done at lower of the acquisition cost/book value/

market value on the date of transfer and the depreciation, if any, fully provided for.

  h. Broken period interest on debt instruments is treated as revenue item. Brokerage, Commission etc. pertaining 

to investments paid at the time of acquisition is charged to revenue.

  i. The investments are accounted for on the settlement date.

  j. Overdue Interest if any in respect of non performing investments is provided under ‘Overdue Interest Reserve’ 

on investments.

 4. Advances

guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

  b. Provision on Advances categorized under Sub-Standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets is made in accordance 

with the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India. In addition, a general provision is made on following 

categories of standard assets as per RBI guidelines, as under:

Category Provision (%)
Direct advances to Agricultural and SME Sectors 0.25
Commercial Real estate loans 1.00
CRE – RH 0.75
Other advances 0.40

  c. For restructured accounts provision is made in accordance with RBI guidelines which require diminution in 

the fair value of assets to be provided for at the time of restructuring.

 5. Depreciation and Fixed Assets – AS 6 and AS 10

  a. Premises (other than premises of merged banks) are stated at cost upon acquisition. Premises of the merged 
banks are recorded at fair market value upon merger. Premises have been revalued from time to time as 
per the Valuation Reports of registered Govt. approved valuers. The surplus, if any, arising out of such 
revaluation is carried to Premises and credited to Revaluation Reserve. Amortisation of revalued portion of 
the relevant year is debited to Revaluation Reserve and depreciation on Written Down Value of Premises is 
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  b. Premises are depreciated over the residual life of Premises not exceeding 40 Years evenly. Accordingly 

the bank has a policy of assessing the residual life of premises periodically to present the realistic value of 

premises from time to time.

  c. Fixed Assets, other than premises are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and premises 

are stated at cost/revalued amount less accumulated depreciation in accordance with AS 6 and AS 10 issued 

by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). Fixed Assets include incidental expenses incurred on 

acquisition and installation of the assets.

  d. Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on day wise basis. In case of assets sold / discarded off during 

depreciation is provided from the date of purchase.

appropriate by the management.

Rates per Annum:

Furniture & Fixtures 10%

Vehicles 15%

Electrical Items 10%

ATM 20%

Computers hardware 33.33%

Intangible Software 33.33%

  f. Leasehold land cost is amortized over the period of lease.

  g Stamp duty and registration charges on leasehold premises are amortized over the period of lease.

assets is charged from date of merger at the applicable rates and on premises over the residual/useful life of 

premises.

  i. Capital expenditure in respect of premises taken on lease is amortized over a period of 10 years.

 6. Foreign Currency Transactions – AS 11

  a. The bank has no foreign branches. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted for at the 

rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated at 

  b. Outstanding forward exchange contracts and spot exchange contracts are revalued at year-end exchange 
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 7. Accounting for Amalgamation -AS 14

  Accounting for Amalgamation in case of amalgamated Banks with the Bank is carried out as per the guidelines 

issued by the RBI, from time to time in consonance with AS14 issued by ICAI as under :

   1.  Where no consideration is paid but the book value of the assets is less than the book value of liabilities taken 

over, the excess of the book value of liabilities over the book value of the assets taken over will be considered 

   2.  Where no consideration is paid, but the book value of the assets taken over is greater than the book value of 

the liabilities taken over, the excess of the book value of assets over the  book value of the liabilities will be 

considered as Capital Reserves.

 

  b) The Bank has made the provision required as per AS-15 in respect of terminal dues payable to the employees, 

as per details given below:

using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded plans i.e. gratuity 

recognize the obligation on the net basis.

 9. Segment Reporting – AS 17 :

  In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, Segment Reporting is made as under:

transactions, equities and money market operations. The expenses of this segment consist of interest 

expenses on funds borrowed from external sources as well as internal sources and depreciation/amortization 

of premium on Held to Maturity category investments.

  ii) Other Banking Operations include all other operations not covered under Treasury operations.

 10. Operating Lease – AS 19 :

term in accordance with the AS-19 – Leases, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

 11. Earning Per Share - AS 20:

number of shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of shares is calculated on monthly 

basis.
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 12. Taxation – AS - 22

  a. Tax expense comprises both deferred and current taxes. Current income tax is measured at the amount 

expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred 

income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.

taxable income will be available against which such Deferred Tax Assets can be realized.

at each reporting date, based upon management’s judgment as to whether the realization is reasonably 

certain.

 13. Provisions and contingent liabilities - AS 29

  A provision is recognized when Bank has a present obligation as a result of past event where it is probable that an 

Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle 

current best estimates.

  A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is:

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the Bank; or

resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot 

be made.

no provision or disclosure is made.

 14. Operation guidelines in respect of Depositor Education and Awareness Fund Scheme, 2014

  In terms of DBOD Circulars No. DEAF Cell.BC.114/30.01.002/2013-14 dated 27th May, 2014, the Bank has transferred 

all credit balances mentioned in sub-clause i) to viii) in Clause 3 of DEAF Scheme 2014 maintained with the Bank 

which have not been in operation for 10 years or more to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund at RBI on June 

30, 2014. Subsequently, Bank is transferring to the said Fund, amount becoming due in each calendar month (i.e. 

and the interest accrued thereon on the last working day of the subsequent month.

  In case of demand from customer/depositors whose unclaimed amount/deposit had been transferred to the fund, 

the Bank repays the customer/depositor, along with interest, if applicable, and lodges a claim for refund from the 

fund for an equivalent amount paid to the customer/depositor. The details of refund made by the Bank in each 

calendar month are furnished by the Bank in the prescribed form in the subsequent month.

Liability – Others, items for which the Bank is contingently liable” under Schedule of Contingent Liability in the 

Annual Financial Statements.
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III. NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

 1. Revaluation Reserve:

  a) In tune with the Bank’s policy, the bank has revalued some of the premises during the year on the basis of fair 

credited by ` 10519.79 lacs to the extent of difference between written down value of `21520.00 lacs and fair 

market value of ` 32039.79 lacs as on the date of valuation.

  b) Amortization of ` 430.83 lacs ( ` 283.88 lacs ) on account of revaluation of ownership premises have been 

provided during the year and an equivalent amount is debited to Revaluation Reserve.

 2. The bank has written off an amount of ` 17385.41 lacs towards Bad debts, which is approved by the Board 

provided for.

 3. Suppliers/Service providers covered under Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, have not 

information relating to cases of delays in payments to such enterprises or of interest payments due to delays in 

such payments, can not be given.

 4. The income for Bank assurance business for the period April 2014 to March 2015 is as follows -

 (` in lacs)

Sr. No. Nature of Income 2014-15 2013-14

1. From selling Life Insurance Policies 11.19 43.62

2. From selling Non Life Insurance Policies 41.22 43.27

3. From selling Mutual Fund Products 21.93 18.70

Total 74.34 105.59

 5. Restructured Loans:

  Details of loans subjected to restructuring as on 31 March 2015 are given below:

      (` in lacs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars CDR  
Mechanism

Housing
Loans

SME Debt  
Restructuring

Others

1. Standard  
advances  
restructured

No. of Borrowers — — 34 1
Amount outstanding — — 60662.99 6.42
Diminution in the fair value — — — —

2. Sub-standard 
advances 
restructured

No. of Borrowers — — 4 1
Amount outstanding — — 8578.57 125.01
Diminution in the fair value — — — —

3. Doubtful  
advances  
restructured

No. of Borrowers — — 2 —
Amount outstanding — — 6069.71 —
Diminution in the fair value — — — —

Total No. of Borrowers — — 40 2
Amount outstanding — — 75311.27 131.43
Diminution in the fair value — — — —

  There are no restructuring proposals under process and pending for approval as on 31.03.2015.
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(` in lacs)

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14

a. No. of Borrowers — 22

b. Aggregate Value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC — 27158.86

c. Aggregate consideration — 30900.00

d. Additional consideration realized in respect of Accounts 

transferred in earlier years

NIL NIL

e. Aggregate gain/ loss over net book value — 3741.14

 b.  Details of non-banking assets purchased during the year

 ( ` in lacs )

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14

i No of Assets purchased during the year — 2

ii Aggregate Value of accounts Purchased (including outstanding 

principal, unrecovered interest, other charges and write off amount)

— 1631.44

iii Aggregate Consideration ( Net of Stamp Duty ) — 1705.00

iv Additional consideration paid [(iii)-(ii)]. NIL 73.56

7. Prior Period Items - AS 5

8. Gain(Loss) on Foreign Exchange Transactions – AS 11 :

 The bank has revalued the forward exchange contracts & spot exchange contracts as per the FEDAI rates as on the 

date of Balance sheet and net gain on account of such revaluation of `

accordance with AS-11 issued by ICAI.

9.  Accounting for Amalgamation.( AS 14 ) :

 (` in lacs)

Bank Merger
Date

Goodwill on 
merger

Debit/
Credit to 
goodwill  

after 
merger

Goodwill 
written  

off  
upto

31/3/2014

Goodwill 
written

off
During 
2014-15

Goodwill
c/f

Amravati Peoples Co-op. 
Bank Ltd., Amravati.

18.05.2011 969.88 (48.49) 510.67 205.36 205.36

Total 969.88 (48.49) 510.67 205.36  205.36

 b. Merger of Co-operative Bank of Ahmedabad Ltd.

  As per the merger scheme, there is no period limit for recovery of loss on merger in case of Co-op Bank of 

received on account of recovery, the excess provision of ` 364.46 lacs on account of amortization of losses is 
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(` in lacs )

Bank Name Accum. 
losses on 

merger

Net credit 
to losses on 

A/C of  
Recovery 

etc.

Losses  
C/F  

to be  
provided

Loss  
Provided 

upto 
2013-14

Excess  
Provided  

w/back during 
the year
2014-15

Accumulated 
loss pending to 

be Provided  
over the  
next year

Co-Op. Bank of 
Ahmedabad Ltd.

2207.38 1069.28  773.64 1138.10 (364.46) —

Total 2207.38 1069.28 773.64 1138.10 (364.46) —

  The balance loss of ` 773.64 lacs in respect of CBA will be adjusted against the further recovery received as there 

is no time limit prescribed for such recovery of loss in merger scheme of CBA.

 The liability towards leave encashment and Gratuity is assessed on the basis of actuarial valuation report of Actuary.

 (` in lacs)

Sr. 
No. Particulars

Gratuity  Leave Encashment

31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.15 31.03.14

I Discount Rate 7.92% 9.35% 7.92% 9.35%

II Expected return on plan assets 7.92% 8.70% — —

III Salary Escalation rate 4% 4% 4% 4%

IV

Opening Present value of obligation 2617.62 2587.84 702.40 704.81

Interest cost 244.75 208.01 65.67  56.88

Current service cost 140.15 131.00 102.17 10.19

Liability transfer in — — — —

-182.34 -227.54 -238.38 -204.98

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 294.09 -81.69 196.41 135.50

Closing Present value of obligation 3114.27 2617.62 828.27 702.40

V Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the fair value of the plan assets:

Opening Fair value of plan assets 2967.83 2778.96 — —

Expected return on plan assets 258.20 241.77 — —

Contributions 189.55 182.41 — —

Transfer from other entity — — — —

-182.34 -227.54 — —

Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets 11.95 -7.77 — —

Closing Fair value of plan assets 3245.19 2967.83 — —

VI Amount recognized in balance sheet:

Present value of obligation as at 3114.27 2617.62 828.27 702.40

Fair value of plan assets as at 3245.19 2967.83 — —
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Sr. 
No. Particulars

Gratuity  Leave Encashment

31.03.15 31.03.14 31.03.15 31.03.14

(Assets) / liability as at -130.92 -350.21 828.27 702.40

VII

Current service cost 140.15 131.00 102.17 10.19

Interest cost 244.75 208.01 65.67 56.88

Expected Return of Plan Assets -258.20 -241.77 — —

Net actuarial (gain) / loss 282.14 -73.92 196.41 135.50

Expenses recognized in P & L account included in Salaries,  
Allowances, PF contribution and Gratuity etc.

408.84 23.32 364.25 202.57

VIII Category of fair value of Plan Assets:
- Insured managed funds 100% 100%

— —

11. Primary Segment Reporting (By Business Segments)– (AS- 17)

(` in lacs)

Treasury Other  
Banking Operations

Total

Segment Revenue before Exceptional items 51318.78 

(46810.24)

152327.21 

(136880.37)

203645.99 

(183690.61)

Result 4128.99

(4096.33)

4537.90 

(3690.82)

8666.89 

(7787.15)

Unallocated Expenses — — —

4128.99

(4096.33)

4537.90

(3690.82)

8666.89

(7787.15)

Income Taxes 2902.63 

(1357.23)

Reversal of Excess IFR 0.00

(2001.50)

 0.00 

(0.00)

0.00 

(2001.50)

5764.26

(8431.42)

OTHER INFORMATION

Segment Assets 542212.52

(507212.91)

1329408.49 

(1229341.85)

1871621.01

(1736554.76)

Unallocated Assets — — 37310.53

(32402.29)

Total Assets 1908931.54

(1768957.05)

Segment Liabilities 16909.10 

(20699.07)

1834879.29 

(1694734.43)

1851788.39

(1715433.50)

Unallocated Liabilities — — 57143.15

(53523.55)

Total Liabilities 1908931.54

(1768957.05)

(Figures in the bracket are of previous year i.e. 2013-14)
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 These segments have been reported considering the nature of products or services, the class of customers for the 

products or services, different risks and returns attributable to them, organizational structure and internal management 

information system.

 Types of products and services in each business segment:-

 a)  Treasury: Dealing Operations in Forex/ Money Market Instruments.

 b)  Other Banking Operations: Foreign and Local Finance/ Services

 Secondary Segment Information: Bank operates only in one geographical area, hence separate information regarding 

secondary segment i.e. geographical segment is not given.

12. Related Party Disclosures (AS-18)

 a.  Related Party disclosures:

 (` in lacs)

Items / Related Party Cosmos E Solutions & Services Pvt. Ltd. 

(Subsidiary Company)

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Transactions-

1 Rendering of Services to Bank

Towards Revenue 803.70 796.53

Towards Purchases 0.00 9.33

2 Dividend received 28.75 3.75

Balances-

1 Current account with Bank 93.29 68.82

2 Investment in Subsidiary 25.00 25.00

3 Advance for Services 0.00 119.69

 b.  Mr. Vikrant Ponkshe, Managing Director of the Bank being a single party under the category of Key Management 

Personnel, no further details need to be disclosed in terms of RBI circular dated March 29, 2003.

1

(` in lacs)

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Minimum lease payments payable at the end of the year:

- Not later than one year 2462.90 2300.14

 9330.86  9167.29

16138.82 17130.37

the year.

2339.96 1470.71

Total of minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received under non-

cancelable sub-lease

N.A. N.A.

N.A. N.A.
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14. Earnings Per share (AS – 20)

Sr. No. Particulars 2014-15 2013-14

A 576426301.59 642991850.41

B Total number of Equity shares at the end of year 31242835 31392015

C Weighted avg. number of shares of ` 100/- each for the purpose of 

computing Earnings per share

31386491.08 31330113.42

D Basic Earning per share (A / C) 18.37 20.52

15. Deferred Tax (AS – 22)

 The major components of Deferred Tax for the year are as under: 

( ` in lacs)

Deferred Tax Assets 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

1. Provision for BDDR 30763.47 27791.41

2. Provision for Standard Assets 626.67  626.67

3. Leave encashment Provision  828.27  781.97

4. Difference in WDV — —

Sub Total (A)  32218.41  29200.05

Deferred Tax Liability

1. Difference in W.D.V. 3555.63 1210.91

2. Depreciation on HTM securities 15055.46 15600.92

Sub Total (B)  18611.09  16811.83

Total (A-B)

Deferred Tax Asset

 13607.32

 4708.13

 12388.22

 4210.76

  The application of Deferred Tax has resulted in a net credit of `

ended 31st March, 2015. The closing Deferred Tax Asset (net) of ` 4708.13 lacs has been shown separately in the 

Balance Sheet.

16. Details of computer software other than internally generated- (AS– 26)

        (` In lacs )

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14

Opening balance (at cost) 2565.29 2036.01

Add: Additions/ Adjustments during the year 398.96 529.28

2964.25 2565.29

Less: Amortization made

Opening Balance 2089.93 1921.64

Add: Amortization/ Adjustments during the year 327.83 168.30

2417.76 2089.94

Net Carrying Amount 546.49 475.35
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17. Impairment of Assets - AS 28 :

 The Bank has ascertained that there is no material impairment of any of its assets and as such no provision under 

Accounting Standard 28 issued by the ICAI is required.

18. Contingent Liabilities AS -29:

 a) Contingent liabilities in respect of Bank guarantees, Letters of credit, Forward contracts etc.     

(` in lacs)

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Bank Guarantees 40063.74 36501.97

Letters of Credit ( LC+Buyer’s Credit) 40783.32 47093.45

Forward Exchange contracts Purchase / Sale 22801.57 26808.89

Others – Depositors’ Education Awareness Fund  1465.00  0.00

Total 105113.63 110404.31

 b) Claims not acknowledged as debts:

 (` in lacs)

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Income tax paid under protest 3444.21 2090.21

Others (HR) — 397.62

c) Contingent Liabilities – Others

 In terms of DBOD Circular No. DEAF Cell.BC.114/30.01.002/2013-14 dated May 27, 2014, the Bank has transferred all 

credit balances amounting to ` 1471.52 lakhs (mentioned in sub-clause i) to viii) in Clause 3 of DEAF Scheme 2014) 

maintained with the Bank which have not been in operation for 10 years or more. The required disclosure as per the said 

circular is as under:

  (` in lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 0.00 0.00

Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 1471.52 0.00

Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims 6.52 0.00

Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 1465.00 0.00

 The Bank has paid ` 37.80 lakhs to customers /depositors towards the said deposits which have remained unclaimed 

for 10 years or more and also claimed refund of the said amount from RBI in terms of the said scheme.

19. Capital charge on market risk :

 Qualitative Disclosures:

 Strategies and Processes:-

  Investment Policy which includes Market Risk Management is in line with the RBI regulations vide circular UBD.

BPD. (PCB).Cir.No. 42 /09.11.600/2009-10 dated February 8, 2010 and business requirements.
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advantage and reducing loss from all types of market risk loss events.

 Scope and Nature of Risk Reporting /Measurement Systems:-

  The Bank has regulatory/internal limits for various Instruments in place.

  Various exposure limits for market risk management such as Overnight limit, VaR limit, Daylight limit, Aggregate 

Gap limit, Investment limit etc. are in place.

 

Risk includes investment portfolio held under HFT and AFS and Forex Open positions.

  Quantitative Disclosures:

          (` in lacs)

Particulars Amount of Capital required

Interest Rate Risk 3840.60

Equity Position Risk —

Foreign Exchange Risk 40.50

20.

accounts of the current year.

IV.  Disclosure Requirements as Per RBI Guidelines -

  As per terms of RBI circular dated 30-10-2002 following disclosures are made:

 (` in Lacs)
Sr. No. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

1 Capital to Risk Asset Ratio 11.25% 11.95%
2 Movement of CRAR

Tier I Capital 91565.50 89346.90
Tier II Capital  38534.11 39002.95
Total Capital 130099.61 128349.85
Total Risk Weigthed Assets 1155966.88  1074309.69
Capital Ratios
Tier I Ratio 7.92% 8.32%
Tier II Ratio 3.33% 3.63%
CRAR 11.25% 11.95%

3 Investments:
Book Value 525021.20 485458.89
Face Value  514938.80  485761.32
Market Value  528622.21  484342.98

4 Advances against:
1) Real Estate
a)Home Loan 87708.13 80298.86
b) Commercial Real Estate
i) Mall, IT, Lease Rental  59766.39 48170.63
c) Any Other
i) Advances to builder contractor other than commercial estate 25516.24 33302.44
ii) Mortgage Loan 36851.17  31032.94
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 (` in Lacs)
Sr. No. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

5 Advances against shares & debentures 22.32 28.16

6
Advances to Directors, their Relatives, Companies / Firm in 
which they are interested
Fund based 39.41 66.91
Non Fund based — —

7 Average cost of Deposits 8.31% 8.42%
8 NPAs

Gross NPAs 103003.35 66798.63
% of Gross NPA to Loans 9.23% 6.49%
Net NPAs 71445.91 38097.91
% of Net NPA 6.59% 3.81%

9 Movement of NPA
Principal -
Opening Principal 66798.63 65786.17
Addition:
1.Merged Banks 0.00 0.00
2.During the year- Addition 58595.76 25307.56
Recovery -
1.Actual 5005.63 3722.66
2.A/c came out of NPA due to up gradation — —
3.Accounts Written Off/Sale to ARC/ Accounts Purchased by Bank 17385.41 20572.44
Closing Principal 103003.35 66798.63
Provisions
Opening Provision 28700.72 23738.00
Additions:
1.Merged banks Provision 0.00 0.00
2.During the Year - Addition 20305.50 20757.00
Less:
1.Written back due to recovery of merged banks 63.37 8.56
2.Provision on Written Off Bad Debts/ Sale to ARC 17385.41 15785.72
Closing Provision 31557.44 28700.72
Net NPA 71445.91 38097.91

10
1. Interest income as a percentage of working funds. 9.15% 9.20%
2. Non-interest income as a percentage of working funds 1.03% 1.11%

1.56% 1.81%
4. Return on Average Assets 0.31% 0.49%
5. Business (Deposit + Advances) per employee 913.53 880.97

 1.95  2.97

11 Provision made in the year towards.

NPA  20305.50 20757.00

Depreciation in Investments 0.00 2001.50

Standard Assets  206.72 327.99

 12 Movement in Provisions
a. Towards NPA’s (BDDR)
Opening Balance 28700.72 23738.00
Add: Additions during the year 20305.50 20757.00
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 (` in Lacs)
Sr. No. Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Less: Reduction during the year 17448.78 15794.28
Closing Balance 31557.44 28700.72
b. Towards Depreciation on Investments
Opening Balance 1115.91 950.70
Add: Additions during the year  0.00 1115.91
Less: Reduction during the year (Net)  325.67  950.70

Closing Balance  790.24 1115.91
c. Towards Standard Assets
Opening Balance 3562.60 3234.61
Add: Additions during the year  206.72 327.99

Less: Reduction during the year — —

Closing Balance 3769.32 3562.60
 13 Foreign Currency Assets & Liabilities:

a. Foreign Currency Assets  7503.02 12972.31
b. Foreign Currency Liabilities 7503.02 12972.31

 14

DICGC Insurance Premium paid within due date

Period    Due Dt  Payment Dt

01/04 to 30/09/2014  31/05/2014  27/05/2014

01/10 to 31/03/2015  30/11/2014  24/11/2014

 1607.31  1426.31

 15 Total Amount Of Loan Assets restructuring under CDR
a. Amount of Standard Assets subjected to CDR Nil —
b.Amount of Substandard assets subjected to CDR  Nil —
c. Amount of doubtful assets subjected to CDR Nil 6097.32

16. Following disclosures are made as per RBI circulars -

  a)  Issuer Composition for Non SLR Investments as on 31.03.2015 -

 (` in Crores)

Sr. 

No.

Issuer Amount Extent of ‘below 
Investment 

grade’  
securities

Extent of  
‘unrated  

securities’

Extent of  
‘unlisted’  
securities

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

1 PSUs 25.00 — — —

2 FIs 72.90 — — 2.00

3 Public Sector Banks & Private 

sector Banks

68.00 — — —

4 Mutual Funds --- — — —

5 Others

(Shares- ` 1.31crs.+ Sec  

Receipts under ARC ` 431.27crs. 

432.58 — — —

Total 598.48 0.00 0.00 2.00
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 b)  Non-Performing Non-SLR Investments as on 31.03.2015

 (` in Crores)

Particulars Amount

Opening Balance 0.00

Additions during the year since 1st April 2014 0.00

Reductions during the above period 0.00

Closing Balance 0.00

Total provisions held 0.00

 c)  Statement of Securities sold / purchased under REPO Transactions during the year 2014-15.

 (` In Crores)

Particulars Minimum  

Outstanding 

during the year

Maximum  

outstanding 

during the year

Daily Average 

outstanding 

during the year

As on 

31.03.2015

Securities sold under REPO

i. Govt.Securities

ii.Corporate Debt Securities

0.00

(0.00)

NIL

1027.17

(773.95)

NIL

199.78

(139.03)

NIL

236.22

(0.00)

 NIL

Securities purchased under  

Reverse REPO

i. Govt.Securities

ii.Corporate Debt Securities

0.00

(0.00)

NIL

0.00 

(129.99)

NIL

0.00

(1.45)

NIL

0.00

(0.00)

 NIL

 Figures in bracket are of previous year i.e.2013-14

Vikrant P. Ponkshe
Managing Director
For The Cosmos Co-Op. Bank Ltd.,

Sudhan D. Yardi Nachiket Deo
Partner Partner
M. No. 22887 M. No. 117695
For M/s. Yardi Prabhu & Associates For M/s. P. G. Bhagwat
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Statutory Auditor) (Statutory Auditor)
F. R. No. 111727W F. R. No. 101118W
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Nayan Lagad
Chief General Manager

Suhas Gokhale 
Jt. Managing Director

Vikrant Ponkshe
Managing Director

For M/S. Yardi Prabhu & Associates
Chartered Accountants

F.R.No.111727W

For M/S. P.G. Bhagwat
Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 101118W   

For M/S. Gunwani & Kolapkar 
Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. 128698W

 (Sudhan D. Yardi) 
Partner

M. No. 22887
(Statutory Auditor) 

(Nachiket Deo)
Partner

M. No. 117695
(Statutory Auditor) 

(Ghanasham Ranade) 
Partner

M. No. 100151
(Internal Auditor)

(` In Lacs)
31.03.2015 31.03.2014

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
5764.26 8431.42

Adjustments for -
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 1936.84 1222.79
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 8.50 --
Premium w/off 1069.05 851.90
Bad Debts wriiten off 17385.41 8837.21
Provisions 24013.19 25827.86
Goodwill w/off -merged banks 205.36 552.73
Interest paid on Funds 20.58 18.98
 50403.19 45742.89
Add:- Excess cash & Entrance fees etc 45.15 3792.62

50448.34 49535.51
Less:- Medical Assistance to members/staff 5.15 25.20
Less:-Share refund 0.03 0.09

0.00 376.27
Less:- Credit from BDDR/excess prov.reversed/ 18069.87 11184.20

32373.29 37949.75
Adjustments for -
(Increase) / Decrease in Investment (41291.22) (78583.15)
(Increase) / Decrease in Advances (103753.22) (122364.70)
Increase / (Decrease)  in Borrowings 10454.07 11730.47
Increase / (Decrease)  in Deposits 110186.09 187576.58
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Assets 4958.54 (7549.15)
Increase /( Decrease) in Other Liabilities 1613.65 (192.35)
Taxes paid (4410.88) (1348.79)

(22242.97) (10731.09)
Net cash generated from Operating Activities 10130.32 27218.66 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed Assets Purchases (5695.84) (5682.41)
sale of Fixed Assets 10.30 451.52
Net Cash Flow from Investing activities (5685.54) (5230.89)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue Of Shares (149.17) 105.58
Dividend Paid (3710.19) (3465.35)

(3859.36) (3359.77)
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents 585.42 18628.00
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 100881.12 82253.12
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 101466.54 100881.12
NOTES
Cash & Cash Equivalents 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
1. Cash 6426.29 8501.34
2. Balances with RBI 81897.98 80766.46
3. Balances with other Banks 13142.27 11613.32

101466.54 100881.12

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
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INDEPENDENT STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT  
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(Under Section 31 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and Section 73(4) of Multi State Co-Operative Societies Act, 2002  
and Rule 27 of Multi State Co-Operative Societies Rules)

To

The Members

The Cosmos Cooperative Bank Ltd.

Report On The Financial Statements

The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd. as at 31st March, 2015, 

& Associates and 62 branches are audited by M/s P. G. Bhagwat.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

1949 (as applicable to Cooperative societies), Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and rules made thereunder.

 This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 

Auditor’s Responsibility

accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as 

Opinion

6. In our opinion, as shown by books of bank, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us the said accounts together with the notes there on, subject to our comments and observations contained in the Audit 
Memorandum, give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002 and rules made there under in manner so required for the Urban Co-operative Banks and give true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

 (i) In case of Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31st March, 2015;

 (ii) In case of  of the  for the year ended on that date; and

 (iii) In case of Cash Flow Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

 (iv) The bank is awarded ‘A’ class for the year 2014-15.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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29 of Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and Multi-State Co-Operative Societies Act, 2002, and rules made thereunder.

8. Subject to the limitations of the audit indicated in paragraph 1 to 5 above and as required under Rule 27(3) of Multi State 
Co-Operative Societies Rules, 2002 and subject also to the limitations of disclosure required therein, we report that:

 (a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit and have found them to be satisfactory.

 (b) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank.

audit.

accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) to the extent applicable.

10. We further report that:

account and the returns.

 (ii) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as appears from our 
examination of those books.

 (iii) the schedules giving the particulars referred to in Rule 27(3) of Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002 to 
the extent applicable are attached to this report.

For M/S P.G. Bhagwat
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
F.R.No.101118W

For M/S Yardi Prabhu & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
F.R.No.111727W

Nachiket Deo
Partner
Membership No. 117695

Sudhan D. Yardi
Partner
Membership No. 22887

Place: Pune
Date: 22 May, 2015

on 31st March, 2015 as required under Rule 27 of Multi State Co-Op. Societies Rules, 2002 to the extent applicable.

(a) The following monies due to the Bank appear to be doubtful of recovery (Rule 27 (3)(c)).(Advances categorized as 

doubtful and loss assets as per prudential norms are considered as doubtful of recovery). 

Category Amount Outstanding as on 31.03.15  (` in lacs)
Doubtful Assets 68565.07
Loss Assets 3.98
Total 68569.05

 * A provision of ` 24469.00 lacs has been made against the above advances. 

(b)  Loans given by the Bank to members of the Board and their relatives (Rule 27 (3)(d)). The following credit facilities have 

been sanctioned by the Bank to the members of the Board (including relatives).

Fund Based Amount outstanding
(` in lacs)

Security Value
(` in lacs)

Overdues, if any.

39.41 57.53 NIL
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Statement showing particulars Loans & Advances to Directors & their Relatives outstanding 
as on 31st March 2015 (As per Multi-State Co.op. Society Act, 2002 Section 39(3)

31 ceeÛe& 2015 DeKesj mebÛeeuekeâ Je lÙeebÛes veelesJeeF&keâebvee efouesuÙee keâpee&Ûeer ÙesCes yeekeâer oMe&efJeCeeje lekeälee  
(ceefušmšsš keâes-Dee@he. meesmeeÙešer De@keäš 2002 keâuece 39 (3) DevJeÙes meeoj)

Sr. No.
 De.›eâ.

Particulars 

leheMeerue 
Amount of Loan outstanding at the end of the 

year 31.03.2015 

Je<e& DeKesjerme keâpe& ÙesCes jkeäkeâce
(31.3.2015) 

`

1. Directors mebÛeeuekeâ 2,401,410.40

2. Directors Relatives mebÛeeuekeâebÛes veelesJeeF&keâ 1,539,942.76

Total SketâCe ` 3,941,353.16

CLASSIFICATION OF OVERDUES - TERMWISE AS ON 31ST MARCH 2015 
Lekeâyeekeâer oMe&efJeCeeje lekeälee 31 ceeÛe& 2015 DeKesj

Sr.  
No.

De. 
›eâ. 

Type of Loan 

keâpe& Øekeâej
No. of  
a/cs. 

keâpe&oej 
mebKÙee

Outstanding 
Balance 

ÙesCes keâpe& yeekeâer 
`

No. Defaulters / Lekeâyeekeâeroej Overdues Amount / Lekeâyeekeâer jkeäkeâce % to  
out-

standing 

Lekeâyeekeâer 
Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe

Arbt 

ueJeeoer
Non-
Arbt 

efyeiej 
ueJeeoer

Awrd 

oeKeuee
efceUeuesues

Total 

SketâCe
Arbitrary 

ueJeeoer 
`

Non -Arbitrary 

efyeiej ueJeeoer 
`

Awarded 

Jemegueer oeKeuee 
efceUeuesueer Keeleer 

`

Total 

SketâCe 
`

1 Short Term 
Advances 

Deuhe cegole keâpex 

15121 50,66,97,41,936.27 4 76 30 110 92,42,27,198.34 446,10,19,592.79 14,73,84,538.81 553,26,31,329.94 4.96

2 Medium Term 
Advances 

ceOÙece cegole keâpex

21090 26,54,26,70,060.61 7 1761 60 1828 9,66,31,136.85 99,18,36,732.19 22,84,89,543.48 131,69,57,412.52 1.18

3 Long Term 
Advances 

efoIe& cegole keâpex 

13768 34,38,51,79,992.50 7 1995 14 2016 11,10,751.55 67,79,31,455.99 5,77,63,373.87 73,68,05,581.41 0.66

Total/ SketâCe 49979 111,59,75,91,989.39 18 3832 104 3954 102,19,69,086.74 613,07,87,780.97 43,36,37,456.16 758,63,94,323.87 6.80
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AMOUNT-WISE CLASSIFICATION OF DEPOSITS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2015

"sJe jkeâcesvegmeej "sJeeroejebÛes JeieeakeâjCe Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe 31 ceeÛe& 2015
Deposit Amount 

"sJe jkeäkeâce

` 0.00 to 
10,000.00

` 10,000.01 to 
50,000.00

` 50,000.01 to 
1,00,000.00

` 1,00,00.001  
& Above

Total 

SketâCe
Depositor / "sJeeroej 882426 529487 310760 300257 2022930

Percentage (%) to total 
Depositors 

SketâCe "sJeeroejebMeer Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe

43.62 26.18 15.36 14.84 100.00

Rounded off to nearest digit.

OUTSTANDING AMOUNTWISE CLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS AND BORROWERS AND ITS 
PERCENTAGE TO TOTAL ACCOUNTS AND BORROWERS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2015

keâpe& ÙesCesyeekeâer jkeâcesvegmeej KeelesoejebÛeer mebKÙee Je lÙeebÛes SketâCe keâpe&oejebMeer Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe 31 ceeÛe& 2015 DeKesj
Loan Amount 

keâpe& jkeäkeâce

` 1/- to 
50,000/-

`  50,001/- 
to 1,00000/-

` 1,00,001 to 
10,00,000/-

` 10,00,001 
to 

25,00,000/-

` 25,00,001/- 
to 

50,00,000/-

` 50,00,001/- 
and above

Total 
SketâCe

No. of Accounts 
SketâCe Keeles mebKÙee

11625 6196 21037 5461 1636 4024 49979

Percentage to 
Total Accounts 
SketâCe KeelÙeebMeer 
Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe

23.26% 12.40% 42.09% 10.93% 3.27% 8.05% 100.00%

No. of Borrower 
SketâCe Keeles mebKÙee

11008 5678 17099 4154 1033 1548 40520

Percentage to 
Total Borrowers 
SketâCe KeelÙeebMeer 
Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe

27.17% 14.01% 42.20% 10.25% 2.55% 3.82% 100.00%

PURPOSE WISE CLASSIFICATION OF LOANS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2015

keâpe& lekeälee 31 ceeÛe& 2015 DeKesj

(Amount in lacs)
Particulars  

leheMeerue
No. of Borrowers 

Keeles mebKÙee
Amount of Loans 

keâpe& jkeäkeâce `
% 

Meskeâ[e ØeceeCe

Industrial DeewÅeesefiekeâ 3840 473,331.00 42.41

Trade JÙeeheejer 2689 208,745.98 18.71

Allied to Agriculture Mesleerhetjkeâ GÅeesie 720 15,515.97 1.39

Service Industry mesJeemegefJeOee GÅeesie 825 120,484.82 10.80

Builders yeebOekeâece JÙeeJemeeefÙekeâ 191 79,970.01 7.17

Housing Construction 25822 117,843.46 10.56

Consumption JewÙeefòeâkeâ 14420 76,065.16 6.82

Professional & Self Employed mJeÙebjespeieej 1201 20,889.25 1.87

Transport Operator Jeenletkeâ JÙeJemeeÙe 271 3,130.26 0.28

Total SketâCe 49979 1,115,975.91 100.00
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Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Shareholders: 
We are pleased to present the Eighth Annual Report on the 

statements for the period ended March 31, 2015.
(Amount in `)

Particulars For the year 
ended March 

31, 2015 

For the year 
ended March 

31, 2014 
Revenue from operations 8,93,47,550 8,21,54,955
Other income 5,09,092 1,39,183
Total income 8,98,56,642 8,22,94,138
Operating expenses excluding 
depreciation and amortization

6,62,66,508 5,68,10,387

tax
2,35,90,134 2,54,83,751

Depreciation and amortization 54,88,524 93,61,175
1,81,01,610 1,61,22,576

Current Tax 58,73,893 43,49,846
Deferred Tax 1,93,128 6,06,569

1,20,34,589 1,11,66,161
Share Capital 25,00,000 25,00,000
Reserves and Surplus 2,72,28,974 1,85,44,331

DIVIDEND:
In the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 24th March, 2015 
payment of interim dividend for the year under consideration @ 
` 100 per share was approved and accordingly, your Company 
paid an interim dividend on 24th 

this account was ` 29,99,853 (including Corporate Dividend 
Tax of ` 4,99,853). 

dividend for the year.
TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Your Board does not propose any transfer to reserves from the 

DEPOSITS:
Your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public 
during the year under review.
THE STATE OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE 
OUTLOOK
The Company’s parent organization i.e. The Cosmos Co-
operative Bank Limited continues to be Company’s principal 
client. Your company has started providing services for 
implementation of applications like CTS,RTGS, AEPS, Finacle, 
Internet Banking, Mobile Banking and other IT services like 
Project Management, Network Management, IT Infrastructure 

Management to various banks in India. Also your Company has 
started providing Core Banking System (CBS) on Software as 
a Service (SaaS) basis, where the banks do not have to make 
any major capital investment in software and hardware.
Your Company has co-developed KYC-AML product for the 
banking industry. There is a huge demand for this product in 
the market and various banks have already shown interest in 
this product.
Finacle is an internationally acclaimed Core Banking product 
developed by Infosys and there is a good business opportunity 
to your Company to provide Finacle implementation and 
support services to banks. Couple of Co-op Banks have already 
implemented Finacle and few are in process of considering the 
Finacle as their Core Banking Solution. We are glad to inform 
you that Infosys has appointed your Company as the Finacle 
Implementation partner and strategic alliance agreement in 
that regard has been executed recently. 
Considering the potentials of enormous growth in the banking 
sector and the banking regulator’s thrust on use of technology 
in banking operations, your Company sees great opportunities 
to provide IT related services to the banks. Your Company 
provides Banking IT related products and services to more 
than 25 Banks. Providing very professional and cost effective 
IT services in niche banking domain to banks, is the Unique 
Selling Proposition (USP) of your Company.
Your Company is empanelled with NAFCUB as the approved 
Banking Technology partner to provide Banking and IT services 
to Co-operative Banks in India. 
Your Company has 96+ IT professionals and few of them 
are having more than 20 years of IT and Banking domain 
experience from domestic and international companies.
Your Directors expect to better the Company’s performance 
by adding new clients and also reduce its dependence on a 
single client.
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS 
MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES.
There are no contracts or arrangements made with related 
parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013.
The change in the nature of business, if any
There have been no material changes in the nature of business 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY,WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END 
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH 
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE 
OF THE REPORT
There are no instances of any material changes and 
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THE NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR 
CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES 
OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR.

The Company has no subsidiaries or associate companies.

BOARD MEETINGS

were held.

THE DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL WHO WERE APPOINTED OR HAVE 
RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

Shri. Milind Kale and Shri. Jayant Shaligram, directors of the 
Company tendered their resignations from the directorship of 
the Company with effect from 18th October, 2014. The same 
was accepted in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 
18th October, 2014.

The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the 
valuable guidance provided by Shri. Milind Kale and Shri.
Jayant Shaligram during their tenure as the directors of the 
Company.

Dr. Vijay Bhatkar, Indian computer scientist and Padma 
Bhushan awardee and Shri Ashutosh Joshi were appointed 
as additional directors of the Company in the meeting of the 
Board of Directors held on 18th October, 2014. It’s a matter 
of proud and honour to have these eminent personalities in 

Company.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013; Dr. Vijay 
Bhatkar and Shri. Ashutosh Joshi, Directors retire at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. Whereas Dr. Vijay Bhatkar 
has expressed his inability to continue as a Director on 
account of personal reasons, Shri. Ashutosh Joshi, being 
eligible, seeks re-appointment. The Board recommends re-
appointment of Shri. Ashutosh Joshi.

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
relating to constitution of Audit Committee are not applicable 
to the Company.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer in their report 

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Gokhale & Sathe having Firm Registration No: 103264W, 
Chartered Accountants, the auditors of the Company will retire 
at the conclusion of ensuing annual general meeting and have 

expressed their willingness to continue as statutory auditors 
of the Company.

Board recommends the members of the company to 
approve the re-appointment of M/s Gokhale & Sathe having 
Firm Registration No: 103264W, Chartered Accountants 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company in accordance with 
applicable rules and regulations.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 

regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and Company’s operations in future.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 
2013, an extract of the annual return in the prescribed format 
is appended as Annexure 2 to the Board’s report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring 

adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and timely 

HUMAN RESOURCE

The Company is recruiting employees at a gradual pace. All 
employees to perform key functions of the company and the 
support staff has been appointed.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

During the year under review, your Company had no employee 
who was in receipt of remuneration of more than ` 60 lakhs 
during the year ended 31st March, 2015 or more than ` 5 
lakhs per month during any part of the year. 

Therefore, there are no particulars of employees pursuant to 
Rule 5 (2) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 to be furnished.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

Your Company has a policy in place to address the issues 
relating to the sexual harassment of women at work place and 
has setup a committee in that regard.  During the year ended 

to the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace(Prevention, 
prohibition and Redressal ) Act, 2013.
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MATTERS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED UPON AS PER 
THE SECTION 134 (1) (M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

In pursuance of the above requirements, we report as follows:

a)  Conservation of Energy

 The Company is engaged in rendering services in 

major component of total cost. The Company recognizes 
the need and importance of conservation of energy. The 

equipment.

b)  Technology absorption, adoption and innovation

 As the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing 
activities, this section does not apply to the Company. The 
Company's employees keep upgrading their professional 
skills and are aware of the latest developments in the 

c)  Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:-

 Foreign exchange outgo during the year  ` 57,520

 Foreign exchange earnings during the year   NIL

A STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND 
IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY FOR 
THE COMPANY INCLUDING IDENTIFICATION THEREIN OF 
ELEMENTS OF RISK, IF ANY, WHICH IN THE OPINION OF 
THE BOARD MAY THREATEN THE EXISTENCE OF THE 
COMPANY

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
STATEMENT:

The Company has put in place adequate systems of internal 
controls commensurate with its size and nature of its operations. 
These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance 

operational information, complying with applicable statutes, 
safe guarding assets from unauthorized use or losses, 
executing transactions with proper authorization and ensuring 
compliance of corporate policies. 

For each critical activities the Company has documented areas 
of risks and required checks for these activities and functions. 
This list is reviewed and updated on annual basis to ensure the 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR 
INVESTMENTS

Your Company has not granted loans, issued guarantees or 
made investments in terms of provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS                 

The Company is not required to appoint independent directors.  
Therefore, there is no requirement of including a statement on 

declarations given by independent directors under sub-section 
(6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT 
AND REMUNERATION

There is no requirement to constitute the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee as provided in Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, thus the policy in that regard is not 
determined by the Board of Directors. 

REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As the Company does not fall under the criteria prescribed 
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, disclosure 
under this head is not required.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 (5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to the Directors' 

a. that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the 

accounting standards have been followed;

b. that the Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give 
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

Company for the year under review;

for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company  and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for 

concern' basis.

e. that the directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation 
to all employees of the Company for their dedication and 
focused attitude.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sunil Arvind Sabnis
Chairman
DIN – 00009334

Pune;
Dated: August 29, 2015
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Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The members of
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

COSMOS e-SOLUTIONS & SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED (“the 
company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31st March 

policies and other explanatory information.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 

7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility 
also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting 
the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility

statements based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required 
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made there under.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 

Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on whether the company has in place 

reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates 
made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 

Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

give the information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

for the year ended on that date.
Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 

issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 
143 (11) of the Companies Act 2013, we give in the annexure 

order.
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books.

statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 
books of account.

Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the 
directors as on 31st March, 2015, taken on record by the 

31st March, 2015, from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to our best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us 
:

 i. There was no pending litigation as at the balance sheet 
date.

 ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts 
including derivatives contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses.

 iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred 
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
company. 

For GOKHALE & SATHE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Reg. No.: 103264W

GAURI S. BEDEKAR
PARTNER

Membership No: 108207

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21.08.2015
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Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited
ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

In the Annexure, as required by the Companies (Auditor’s 
Report) Order, 2015 issued by the Central Government in 
terms of Section 143 (11) of the Companies Act 2013, on the 
basis of checks, as we considered appropriate, we report on 

the extent applicable to the company,

i) a)  The company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars including quantitative details 

in the soft (computerized) form.

during the year, which in our opinion is reasonable 
having regard to the nature of the assets. We have 
been informed that no material discrepancy was 

ii) Considering the nature of the business and services 
rendered by the company, provisions of clause 3 (ii) of the 
CARO relating to inventory are not applicable.

iii) The company has not granted any loans, secured or 

in the register maintained under section 189 of the 
Companies Act. Therefore provisions of clause 3 (iii) of 
the CARO are not applicable. 

iv)  On the basis of selective checks carried out during the 
course of our audit, in our opinion and according to the 
information and explanation given to us, there exists an 
adequate internal control system commensurate with the 
size of the company and nature of its business, with regard 

of our audit, we have not observed any continuing failure 
to correct major weakness in internal control system of 
the company.

v) The company has not accepted any deposits from public 
and accordingly the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the 
Act, and Rules framed there under and any directive 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India are not applicable to 
the company.

vi) Section 148 (1) of the Companies Act for Maintenance of 

applicable to the company.

vii)  a)  The company is regular in depositing with appropriate 
authorities undisputed statutory dues including the 
Provident Fund, Employees state insurance, income 
tax, sales tax, , service tax, value added tax, cess 
and any other statutory dues applicable to it.

 b)  According to the information and explanation given to 
us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, wealth 
tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess which 
have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

 c)  In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, during the year, no amount 
was pending to be transferred to investor education 
and protection fund.

viii) The company does not have accumulated losses as at 
31st March 2015 and it has not incurred cash losses 

ix) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the company has not taken 

provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the CARO are not applicable.

x) In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the company has not given any 

institution. Therefore provisions of clause 3 (x) of the 
CARO are not applicable.

xi) The company has not obtained any term loans and 
therefore provisions of clause 3 (xi) of the CARO are not 
applicable.

xii)  According to the information and explanation given to 
us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit.

For GOKHALE & SATHE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Firm Reg. No.: 103264W

GAURI S. BEDEKAR
PARTNER

Membership No: 108207

Place: Mumbai
Date: 21.08.2015
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

As per our report of even date attached,

For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 103264W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Gauri S Bedekar Sunil Sabnis Vasant Manwadkar
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No: 108207 DIN: 00009334 DIN: 00160446

Place: Mumbai Place: Pune
Date: 21.08.2015 Date: 29.05.2015

Particulars Note 
No.

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1)  Shareholder's Funds
 (a)  Share Capital 3  2,500,000  2,500,000 

 (b)  Reserves and Surplus 4  27,228,974  18,544,331 

(2)  Non-Current Liabilities
 (a)  Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 23  1,360,729  881,240 

(3)  Current Liabilities
 (a)  Trade payables 5  7,676,852  5,653,635 

 (b)  Other current liabilities 6  1,166,613  14,744,187 

 (c)  Short-term provisions 7  10,723,592  8,766,050 

Total  50,656,760  51,089,443 

II. Assets
(1)  Non-current assets
 (a)  Fixed assets 8

       (i)  Tangible assets  1,768,260  104,589 

       (ii)  Intangible assets  8,489,230  11,586,527 

 (b)  Long term loans and advances 9  11,958,913  11,511,586 

 (c)  Other non-current assets 10  -  16,124 

(2)  Current assets
 (b)  Trade receivables 11  14,016,745  12,098,446 

 (c)  Cash and cash equivalents 12  9,318,384  8,065,457 

 (d)  Short-term loans and advances 13  1,495,831  541,720 

 (e)  Other current assets 14  3,609,397  7,164,993 

Total  50,656,760  51,089,443 
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STATEMENT  OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Particulars Note 
No.

31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Income
I. Revenue from operations 15  89,347,550  82,154,955 

II. Other Income 16  509,092  139,183 

I.  Total Revenue  89,856,642  82,294,138 
II. Expenses:

Expenses relating operating activity 17  7,497,112  4,904,426 
18  56,517,809  50,137,698 

Financial costs 19  39,600  357 
Depreciation and amortization expense 8  5,488,524  9,361,175 
Other expenses 20  2,211,986  1,767,906 
II. Total Expenses  71,755,032  66,171,562 

III. 
(III)

 18,101,610  16,122,576 

IV. Tax expense:
 (1) Current tax  5,873,893  4,349,846 
 (2) Deferred tax  193,128  606,569 
IV. Total Tax Expense (IV)  6,067,021  4,956,415 

V.  12,034,589  11,166,161 

 12,034,589  11,166,161 
 

VI. Earning per equity share: 24
(1) Basic  481.38  446.65 
(2) Diluted  481.38  446.65 

As per our report of even date attached,

For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 103264W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Gauri S Bedekar Sunil Sabnis Vasant Manwadkar
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No: 108207 DIN: 00009334 DIN: 00160446

Place: Mumbai Place: Pune
Date: 21.08.2015 Date: 29.05.2015
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Particulars 31.03.2015 
`

31.03.2014
` 

A) Cash Flow From Operating Activities  

 18,101,610  16,122,576 

 Depreciation and amortisation  5,488,524  9,361,175 

 Preliminary expenses written off  16,124  16,124 

 23,606,259  25,499,875 

 Adjustments for:

 Interest received  (508,314)  (135,583)

 Increase/(decrease) in Trade payables  2,007,449  (1,860,965)

 Increase/(decrease) in Other current liabilities  (13,561,806)  624,368 

 Increase/(decrease) in Short-term provisions  (4,041,204)  44,023 

 Income tax paid (net of refunds)  (447,327)  (6,907,068)

 (Increase)/decrease in Trade receivables  (1,918,299)  (11,963,344)

 (Increase)/decrease in Short-term loans and advances  (954,111)  (14,720)

 (Increase)/decrease in Other current assets  3,555,596  700,562 

A  7,738,243  5,987,148 

 (4,054,898)  (3,363,239)

 Interest received  508,314  135,583 

B  (3,546,584)  (3,227,656)

 Dividend paid  (2,875,000)  (375,000)

 Dividend distribution tax  (63,732)  - 

C  (2,938,732)  (375,000)

 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A) + (B) + (C)  1,252,927  2,384,492 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  8,065,457  5,680,965 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  9,318,384  8,065,457 
As per our report of even date attached,

For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 103264W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Gauri S Bedekar Sunil Sabnis Vasant Manwadkar
Partner Chairman Managing Director
Membership No: 108207 DIN: 00009334 DIN: 00160446

Place: Mumbai Place: Pune
Date: 21.08.2015 Date: 29.05.2015
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

1  Background
 Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited ('the Company') was incorporated on 23rd May, 2007 under the Companies 

Act, 1956 (‘the Act’), and is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Limited.
 The Company is primarily engaged in the business of rendering Information Technology related services in the banking 

sector.

under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting. GAAP comprises mandatory accounting 
standards as prescribed under 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires 
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

 2.2 Use of estimates

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 

statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting 
estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

 2.3 Revenue recognition
  Revenue is primarily derived from Information Technology (IT) Support and related services. Arrangements with the 

to the Balance Sheet date is recognised as unbilled revenue.

period in which services are rendered.
  Revenue from sale of software products, client support and other services is recognized as and when the services are 

performed.
  Interest income is recognized using the time proportionate method, based on rates implicit in the transaction.
 2.4  Tangible assets and capital work-in-progress
  Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Cost comprises of purchase 

price and any attributable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning expenses Cosmos 
incurred in bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

date.
 2.5  Intangible assets
  Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less 

accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.
  Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software product development costs are expensed as incurred unless 

has an intention and ability to complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably.
 2.6  Depreciation and amortisation
  In respect of tangible assets acquired during the year, depreciation is provided on written down value method so as to 

For assets acquired prior to April 1, 2014, the carrying amount as on April 1, 2014 is depreciated over the remaining 
useful life.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

  Intangible assets (Software Product) are amortised over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-
line basis, from the date they are available for use. Other intangible assets are amortised @ 40% on written down value 
method. 

  Depreciation and amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically by the management, 

by employees. the company does have a policy for payment of leave encashment.

   Contribution to provident fund and superannuation for are accounted for on accrual basis. The Company has 
subscribed to Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and annual contribution is 
deposited with LIC as per actuarial valuation given by LIC.

 2.8  Taxation
  Income tax expense comprises of current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the 

accounting income and taxable income for the period). 
  Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using applicable 

tax rate and tax laws. Deferred tax is recognised in respect of timing differences between taxable income and accounting 
income i.e. differences that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. The 
deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to 
the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed 
depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual 

deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down 

 2.9 Operating leases

straight line basis over the lease term. 
 2.10  Earnings per share (EPS) 
  

year/period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting year/period.
 2.11 Provisions and contingencies
  The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an 

liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an 

is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to 

are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably ascertained.

in which the change occurs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Note 3 : Share Capital
Share Capital 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

 No.  `  No.  ` 
Authorised
Equity Shares of ` 100 each  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000 
Issued
Equity Shares of ` 100 each  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000 

Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of ` 100 each fully paid  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000 

Subscribed but not fully Paid up
Equity Shares of ` 100 each fully paid  -  -  -  - 

Total  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000 

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the end of the year
Particulars 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

No. ` No. `

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000 
Shares Issued during the year  -  -  -  - 
Shares bought back during the year  -  -  -  - 
Shares outstanding at the end of the year  25,000  2,500,000  25,000  2,500,000 
Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares    
The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends 
and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from 
time to time. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. The voting rights of an equity shareholder 
on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the company. Voting rights 
cannot be exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. 
Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares.
On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company."
Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company    

Name of Shareholder 31.03.2015 31.03.2014
No. % No. %

The Cosmos Co-op Bank Limited  25,000 100.00  25,000 100.00
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Note 4 : Reserves and Surplus
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Opening balance  17,244,331  7,753,169 
 12,034,589  11,166,161 

(+) Transfer from Reserves
(-) Deferred tax liability of earlier years  286,361  - 
(-) Proposed Dividends  -  375,000 
(-) Dividend Distribution Tax  563,585  - 
(-) Interim Dividends  2,500,000  - 
(-) Transfer to General Reserve  -  1,300,000 
Closing Balance  25,928,974  17,244,331 
General Reserve
Opening Balance  1,300,000  - 

 -  1,300,000 
Closing Balance  1,300,000  1,300,000 

 27,228,974  18,544,331 

Note 5 : Trade payables
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

For dues to micro and small suppliers (Refer Note 26)
Trade Payables  7,676,852  5,653,635 
Total  7,676,852  5,653,635 

Note 6 : Other Current Liabilities
Particulars 31.03.2015 

`
31.03.2014

`

Income received in advance  22,472  327,938 
Other payables  1,144,141  1,447,695 
 Statutory remittances (Contribution to Provident Fund, ESIC, Withholding Taxes,  
 Service Tax, Value Added Tax etc)
 Advances from customers  -  12,968,554 
Total  1,166,613  14,744,187 



75

8th  Annual Report  2014–2015

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Note 7 : Short Term Provisions
Particulars 31.03.2015 

`
31.03.2014

`

 -  4,041,204 
Others 
 Proposed Dividend  -  375,000 
 Provision for Income Tax  10,723,592  4,349,846 
Total  10,723,592  8,766,050 

Note 8 : Fixed Assets

FIXED ASSETS GROSS BLOCK ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Balance as at 

01.04.14
Additions/ 
(Disposals)

Acquired 
through 

business  
combinations

Revaluations/ 
(Impairments)

Balance as at 
31.03.15

Balance as at 
01.04.14

Depreciation 
charge for the 

year

Adjustment 
due to 

revaluations

On disposals Balance as at 
31.03.15

Balance as at 
01.04.14

Balance as at 
31.03.15

` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` `

a. Tangible Assets
Vehicles  52,756  1,670,824  -    -    1,723,580  24,405  50,784  -    -    75,189  28,351  1,648,391 

Furniture and Fixtures  12,349  90,000  -    -    102,349  2,540  2,639  -    -    5,179  9,809  97,170 

Computer System - Hardware  295,811  -    -    -    295,811  229,382  51,638  -    -    281,020  66,429  14,791 

 -    10,210  10,210  -    2,302  -    -    2,302  -    7,908 

Total  360,916  1,771,034  -    -    2,131,950  256,327  107,363  -    -    363,690  104,589  1,768,260 
b. Intangible Assets

Computer Software - Internet 
Banking

 5,479,682  -    -    -    5,479,682  5,479,681  -    -    -    5,479,681  1  1 

Computer System - Software  43,732  1,101,939  -    -    1,145,671  32,086  357,234  -    -    389,320  11,646  756,351 

Oracle E-Business Suite Software  19,007,774  1,181,926  -    -    20,189,699  7,432,894  5,023,928  -    -    12,456,821  11,574,880  7,732,878 

Total  24,531,188  2,283,864  -    -    26,815,052  12,944,661  5,381,161  -    -    18,325,822  11,586,527  8,489,230 
c. Capital Work In Progress

Oracle E-Business Suite Software - - – -  –  –  –  –  –  –  – – 
Total - - – -  –  –  –  –  –  –  – – 

d. Intangible assets under 
Development

 – –  – –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – – 

Total  – –  – –  –  –  –  –  –  –  – – 

Note 9 : Long term loans and advances    
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Tax deducted at source  11,958,913  11,511,586 
Total  11,958,913  11,511,586 

Note 10 : Other Non-current Assets
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Preliminary Expenses  -  16,124 
Total  -  16,124 
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Note 11 : Trade receivables
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due for 
payment
Unsecured, considered good  -  151,686 
Other Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good  14,016,745  11,946,760 
Total  14,016,745  12,098,446 

Note 12 : Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Cash on hand  10,494  13,641 
Balances with banks
 Current Accounts  9,307,890  7,051,816 
 Term Deposit  -  1,000,000 
Total  9,318,384  8,065,457 

    
Note 13 : Short Term Loans and Advances 
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Deposits
 Unsecured, considered good  360,000  525,000 
Prepaid Expenses
 Unsecured, considered good  1,080,796  - 
Other Advances 
 Unsecured, considered good  45,035  - 
Loans and advances to employees
 Unsecured, considered good  10,000  16,720 
Total  1,495,831  541,720 

Note 14 : Other Current Assets
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Unbilled revenue  3,551,522  2,843,509 
 Balances with government authorities - Unsecured, considered good
 Service Tax input credit receivable  57,875  389,994 
Interest accrued on deposits  -  9,423 
Debit Cards for processing  -  76,050 
Others - Unsecured, considered good
Cosmos Bank Employees' Gratuity Fund  -  3,846,017 
Total  3,609,397  7,164,993 
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Note 15 : Revenue from operations
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Sale of products (Software Product Sale)  -  350,000 
Sale of Services  89,140,435  79,446,203 
Server Hosting Charges  204,000  2,346,292 
Training Fees  3,115  12,460 
Other operating revenues  -  - 
Total  89,347,550  82,154,955 

Note 16 - Other Income
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Interest received  508,314  135,583 
Miscellaneous income  778  3,600 
Total  509,092  139,183 

 
    
Note 17 - Expenses relating to operating activity
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Software Technical Support Cost  4,850,461  4,146,141 
Expenses for Other Client's Project  2,624,163  638,879 
Training Course Expenses  2,888  119,406 
Training Faculty Honorarium  19,600  - 
Total  7,497,112  4,904,426 

Particulars 31.03.2015
`

31.03.2014
`

Salaries and incentives  51,884,751  44,834,543 
Contributions to -
 Provident fund  2,698,767  2,785,877 
 Pension Fund  894,634  540,434 
 Gratuity fund contributions  -  650,000 
Employees' Mediclaim Insurance Premium  592,492  925,034 
Staff Welfare Expenses  447,165  401,810 
Total  56,517,809  50,137,698 



(A fully owned subsidiary of The Cosmos Co-op. Bank Ltd.)

78

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Note 19 - Finance costs
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues  39,600  357 
Total  39,600  357 

Note 20 - Other Expenses
Particulars 31.03.2015

`
31.03.2014

`

Electricity Charges  23,680  131,220 
Rent, Rates and Taxes  120,000  681,004 
Telephone Charges  106,109  77,213 

Travelling & Conveyence
Travelling Expenses  665,610  430,963 
Conveyance Expenses  1,392  735 

Motor Vehicle Expenses  16,611  9,677 
Printing and Stationery  27,415  11,543 
Advertisement Expenses  50,981  106,400 
Professional Fees  180,605  112,000 
Short provisions in respect of earlier years (net)  402,800  - 
Payment to auditors (Refer Note below)  130,000  40,000 
Preliminary Expenses Written Off  16,124  16,124 
Miscellaneous Expenses  470,659  151,027 
Total  2,211,986  1,767,906 

Payments to the auditors comprises (net of Service Tax input credit, wherever applicable)

Payments to the auditor as 31.03.2015
`

31.03.2014
`

As auditors - Statutory Audit  45,000  30,000 
For taxation matters  15,000  - 
For Other Services  70,000  10,000 
Total  130,000  40,000 
Note 21 : Commitment

Particulars 31.03.2015
`

31.03.2014
`

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net 
of advances) and not provided for at the year / period end

- -

Other commitments - -

Note 22:  Contingent liability

The Company does not have any contingent liability as at balance sheet date.

Note 23 : Deferred tax liability (net)

As per the Accounting Standard 22, “Accounting for taxes on income”, the Company would have a net deferred tax liability, on 
account of items giving rise to timing differences. Particulars thereof are as under.
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Particulars 31.03.2015
`

31.03.2014
`

Difference in depreciation as per books of
account and tax

13,60,729  8,81,240

Note 24 - Earnings per share

The number of shares used in computing Basic earnings per share (EPS) is the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year.

Computation of Earnings Per Share 31.03.2015
`

31.03.2014
`

1,20,34,589 1,11,66,161
Nominal Value per share 100  100
Weighted average number of equity shares issued (B) 25,000 25,000
Basic earnings per equity share (A / B) (`) 481.38  446.65

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently, the basic and diluted earnings per 
share of the Company remains the same.

Note 25 - Related party disclosure

In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard 18 - Related Party transactions as prescribed under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, the details of related party transactions are given below.

List of Related Parties

Nature of Relationship     Name of Related Party
Holding Organisation     The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd
Key Managerial Person     Shri Vasant Manwadkar, Managing Director

Transactions with related party

Holding Organisation 31.03.2015
`

31.03.2014
`

Sale of Services (including Service Tax) 8,19,89,806 8,39,05,434
Interest on Term Deposit 96,664 10,470
Dividend 25,00,000 3,75,000
Closing balances
Trade receivable (net) 1,10,12,524 99,58,228
Advance received - 1,19,68,554
Term Deposit - 10,00,000
Remuneration to Shri Vasant Manwadkar-Managing Director 29,10,768 23,49,775

26.  Dues to micro and small suppliers
 Under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSMED) which came into force from 2nd October 

with the Company:
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Holding Organisation 31.03.2015
`

31.03.2014
`

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end - -
Interest due remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the year end - -
Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of  section  16  of  the  MSMED,  
along  with  the amount of  the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
day during the accounting year

- -

Amount  of  interest  due  and  payable  for  the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the   year)   but   without   

- -

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year - -
Amount of  further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

- -

27.  Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)

31.03.2015
`

31.03.2014
`

Travelling Expenses 57,520 1,06,625
Total 57,520 1,06,625

28.  Operating lease

and Taxes’ `
29. Transfer pricing
 The Company’s management has developed a system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the 

transfer pricing legislation under Section 92 to 92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company’s management is of  the  
opinion  that its  domestic  transactions are  at  arm’s  length  so  the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the 

28. Provision for gratuity
 The Company has not made any provision for payment of gratuity for the year under consideration, since as on the balance 

sheet date the value of the Gratuity Fund with LIC is exceeding the amount of gratuity liability as per actuarial valuation.
29. Other information

Company for the year/ period.
30. Previous year comparatives

As per our report of even date attached,

For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: 103264W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For Cosmos e-Solutions & Services Private Limited

Gauri S Bedekar Sunil Sabnis Vasant Manwadkar
Partner Chairman Managing Director
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